
 

  
 

 

SONOMA COUNTY OPEN SPACE  
 
          
FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION
 
  

 
COMMISSIONERS  

Mike Sangiacomo (Sonoma)  	     Bob Anderson (Healdsburg)  
Todd Mendoza (Petaluma)          	                                                                                             Eric Koenigshofer (Occidental)    
Regina De La Cruz  (Rohnert Park) 	                   Jeff Owen (Alternate)  
                        

Regular Meeting  
747 Mendocino Avenue  –  Suite  100, Santa Rosa,  CA 95401  

March 8, 2018    5:00 pm  
 

AGENDA  
 

1.   	 	   Call to Order.                                      
 
2. 	 	 Election  of Officers.          [Minute Order 16]  
  Minute Order approving  election of officers  
 
3.   	 	  Agenda Items to  be  Held or Taken Out of Order;  Off-Agenda Items.  
 
4.  	 	   General Announcements Not Requiring Deliberation or Decision.  

 

     5. 	 	    Public Comment.  
     The Brown Act  requires that  time be set aside  for public comment on items  not agendized.  
 

     6. 	 	   Correspondence/Communication.   
  

     7. 	 	   Approval of Commission Minutes.        [Attachment 1]  
 
     8.  		 Financial Report.  

•   June 30, 2017  Audited Financial Reports 	 	         [Attachments 2,  2a, 2b, 2c]  
•   SCAPOSD Consolidated Financial Statements  –  December 2017 	 	   [Attachment 3]  
•   SCAPOSD Consolidated Financial Statements  –  January 2018 	 	   [Attachment 4]  

 
     9.  	 	  Ad Hoc Committee Reports.  

• 	 	 Annual Report/Audit Report Review  (Anderson, Owen)     
• 	 	 Matching Grant Program  (Owen)  
•	  	 Finances  (Owen, Sangiacomo)  
•	  	 Review of County Services  (Mendoza, Koenigshofer)  
• 	 	 Management Review Recommendations  (Anderson, Koenigshofer)  
• 	 	 Stewardship  (Mendoza, Sangiacomo)  

 

    10.  		 Creation of Ad Hoc Committees  for 2018  and Assignment of Commissioners.  
• 	 	 Real Estate  Options  
• 	 	 Fire Recovery Claims  Compliance  Review  

FOC Meeting Agenda 03-08-2018 



 
  

 
  

    11. 	 	 Closed Session.           [Attachment 5]  
   Conference  with Property Manager         

Property:  McCullough 2 
 
 
Address:  2584 Mark West Springs  Road, Santa Rosa
  
 
APNs:   028-060-064,  -066 and  -067 
 
 
Owner:   John McCullough et al 
 
 
Negotiating Parties: 
 
 
    Owners’ Representative:   Rob  Schepergerdes, 
 
 
    District’s Representative:  William J. Keene, General Manager 
 
 
Under Negotiation:  

Acquisition  of Interest in  Real Property by  the Open Space District.  The Commission will give  
instruction to its negotiator(s) on the  price.  (Government Code Section 54956.8)  

       
   12. 	 	   Report on Closed  Session.      
                                                                                                            
   13. 	 	   Suggested Next Meeting.    April  5, 2018   
 

   14.  A		 djournment.   
   

In compliance with Government Code §54954.2(a), the Sonoma County Open Space Fiscal Oversight Commission will, on  
request, make this agenda available in appropriate alternative  formats to persons  with a disability, as required by Section 
202 of the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132), and the Federal  rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  
Individuals who need this agenda in another format or need a disability-related modification or accommodation should  
contact Sue Jackson at 707.565.7346 at least 72 hours prior  to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation.  
Pursuant to Government Code § 54957.5, a copy of all documents related to an item on this agenda submitted to the  Fiscal  
Oversight Commission may be obtained from the Fiscal Oversight Commission office, 747 Mendocino Avenue, Santa Rosa,  
CA 95401.  

Page 2 of 2 
FOC Meeting Agenda 03-08-2018 



  

SONOMA COUNTY  OPEN SPACE 
 
 
   FISCAL OVERSIGHT COMMISSION
 
  

 
COMMISSIONERS  

Mike  Sangiacomo (Sonoma)                      Bob Anderson (Healdsburg)      
Todd Mendoza  (Petaluma)             Eric  Koenigshofer  (Occidental)  
Regina De La Cruz (Rohnert Park)                            Jeff Owen (Alternate)  

 
 

UNAPPROVED   
Minutes for  the  Meeting of  February 8, 2018  

 
Commissioners Present:  Mike Sangiacomo, (Chair Pro Tempore);  Bob Anderson,  Eric  
Koenigshofer, Jeff Owen (Alternate)   
        
Staff Present:  Bill Keene,  General Manager;  Misti Arias, Acquisition Program Manager;  Sheri 
Emerson, Stewardship Program Manager;  Stuart Martin,  Land A cquisition Specialist;  Kathleen  
Marsh, Stewardship  Coordinator;  Lisa A. Pheatt, Counsel; Sue Jackson,  Deputy Clerk.  
 
Also Present:  Duane De  Witt, Roseland Action  
 
1.   	 	   Call to Order.        
        Commissioner Sangiacomo called the  meeting to  order at  5:07  p.m.  
 
2. 	 	 Election  of Officers.  
 The item was held over to the  March  meeting.   
 
3. 	 	 Agenda Items to be Held or  Taken Out of  Order;  Off  Agenda Items.  
 There w ere none.  
 
4.   	 	   General Announcements  Not Requiring Deliberation or Decision.  
        Mr. Keene made the following announcements:  
•   The  Board of Directors will conduct  a series of four workshops  focused on post-fire  

events,     the  first of which will be held at the Board Chambers  on February  13th, entitled  
“Natural Resources Recovery Workshop.”  He and Karen Gaffney, along with Grant  Davis  
and  Jay Jasperse (Sonoma County Water Agency), Michael Gossman (County  
Administrator’s Office) and James Williams (Sonoma County Fire and  Emergency  
Services)  will be presenting to the Board  of Directors.  

•	  	 Following the  aftermath of the  recovery efforts  necessitated by the October fires, the  
District is proceeding  again  with its work on the Vital Lands Initiative. On March 22nd, the  
Fiscal Oversight Commission will host a joint meeting with  the Advisory Committee which  
will focus on the Initiative. The District will  present a draft document to the Board of 
Directors on April 17th, followed by a  presentation of the final  document  on May 22nd.  

FOC Unapproved  Minutes  02-08-18          
ATTACHMENT 1                            

 
                                                                                                                       
  



           
                             

                                                                                                                       
   

 
 

5.     		 Public Comment.  
Duane  De Witt, representing Roseland Action, spoke to the Commission about  a project  
currently under consideration by  the City  of Santa Rosa,  Roseland Creek Park Acquisition,  
potentially  funded,  in part, through the  District’s  Matching Grant Program.   

 
6.   	 	   Correspondence/Communication.  
  There was none.  

 
7. 	 	  Approval of Commission  Minutes.  

On a motion  by Commissioner  Anderson  and second by  Alternate  Commissioner  Owen, the  
minutes were approved  with one correction, i.e.,  14. Adjournment –  the time was  
corrected.   
 

 8.        Ad  Hoc Committee Reports.  
•   Annual Report/Audit Review (Anderson/Owen)  
•   Finance/Investment (Sangiacomo/Owen)  –  Nothing to report.  
•   Matching Grant Program (De La Cruz/Owen)  –  Nothing to report.  
•   District Office Location Scenarios (Anderson/Koenigshofer)  - Nothing to report.  

 
9. 	 	     Creation of Ad Hoc  Committees for 2018 and Assignment of Commissioners.  

Mr. Keene  requested  the creation of a Real Estate  ad hoc  committee, and  recommended  
that Commissioners  Mendoza and Owen be appointed. The Commission recommended 
that Commissioner  Koenigshofer be appointed as  an alternate to the ad hoc  committee.   
The Commission  also recommended that  two  ad hoc  committees  be formed  (1)  to monitor  
fire recovery claims, and  (2) to  form response strategies  for catastrophic and  natural 
disasters that  impact District-held properties.  Further  discussion was held over  to the  
March meeting.     

 
10. 	 	 District’s Role and Response to the  2017 Sonoma County Complex Fires.  

Ms.  Emerson provided an  overview of activities  from the fires’  onset, when District  
personnel staffed the shelters,  the Emergency Operations Center,  the Large Animal  
Evacuation Center, the  Public Information Center, CalFire  headquarters, the Local 
Assistance Center, and on the  fire lines as volunteer firefighters.  District  staff assisted  
easement landowners  by connecting them with resources for  the Local Assistance Center,  
Cal Fire, Resource Conservation District,  National  Resource Conservation Service and other 
resources. Staff implemented work and repairs on District-owned properties.  And 
continuing its role, the  District is  funding  half of the Natural Resources/Watershed  
Recovery Coordinator position for a term of two years.   
 

FOC Unapproved Minutes 02-08-18 
ATTACHMENT 1 



           
                             

                                                                                                                       
   

 

The  Commission requested detailed  information  about  the District’s insurance coverage,  
particularly related to  District-owned l ands. District staff will  report back to the  
Commission at a future  meeting.  
  

11. 	 	 Closed Session.  
 The  Commission adjourned to  Closed  Session at  6:25  p.m.  
 
12. 	 	 Report on Closed Session.   

The Commission reconvened to Open Session at 7:58  p.m. and reported that additional  
direction was given to staff.  
 

13. 	 	 Suggested Next Meeting.      March  8, 2018   
 
14. 	 	 Adjournment.  

The meeting was adjourned  at  8:05  pm. to  March 8, 2018 at  5:00 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
Sue  Jackson   
Deputy Clerk  
 

FOC Unapproved Minutes 02-08-18 
ATTACHMENT 1 



SONOMA COUNTY 

AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 
AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 

TO: Fiscal Oversight Commission 

FROM: Mary Dodge, Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager 

DATE: March 8, 2017 

SUBJECT: Basic Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The annual external audit, performed by Maze and Associates for the fiscal year ending June 30, 

2017 (FY16-1.7), has been completed with the District again receiving an unqualified opinion. 

Significant amounts, other than those discussed in the Management's Discussion and Analysis 

shown on page 5, and details regarding some anticipated items of interest, are as follows: 

• 	 As discussed in Note 5, and in the supplemental section of the report, the Open Space Special 

Tax Account (OSSTA) recorded sales taxes for the fiscal year of $23,189,660, an increase over 

the previous year of 4.4%. 

• 	 The District received $15,824,565 from OSSTA, with $6,556,579 for Capital Acquisitions, 

$6,949,020 for District operations, and $2,318,966 to the Initial Public Access Operation and 

Maintenance (IPAOM) Fund. OSSTA also funded $7,502,750 in debt service on the 2015 

Refunded Bonds. The cash balance in the OSSTA fund at June 30, 2017 was $53,265,994. As 

requested, a cash and fund balance analysis of the OSSTA fund was prepared and is included in 

this report. OSSTA transactions are not part of the District Basic Financial Statements other than 

reference in various footnotes and statistical information. 

• 	 Capital acquisitions are recorded in accordance with General Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB) 51 considering the full cost of the transaction, including grants/donations from other 

agencies. The following amounts were spent on capital assets in FY16-17: 

Conservation Easements 
Stewarts Point $ 6,043,626 

Howlett Forest 6,142,243 

Total Conservation Easement Activity $12,185,869 


747 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 100 •Santa Rosa, California 95401-4850 
707.565.7360 •Fax 707.565.7359 • www.sonomaopenspace.org 

ATTACHMENT 2 

http:www.sonomaopenspace.org


Other Capital Activity 
Mobile Equipment 32,214 

Construction in Process 66,238 

Pre-acquisition Costs 366,365 

Total Other Capital Activity 464,817 


Total Capital Outlay $12.650.686 

• Donations of $5,574,858 were received and a breakdown of the receipts are as follows: 

Date Amount Description 

11/01/2016 (21,428.57) IHillick Ranch annual payment 

01/04/2017 · (250.00) / Sara Peterson donation 


03/28/2017 (75,000.00) I Don Bradley Rev Trust 

I 


' 03/29/2017 (7,170.00) I Bechtel Grant Foundation 

04/05/2017 (141,000.00) j Don Bradley Rev Trust 

04/20/2017 (10.00) IAnonymous cash donation 

06/13/2017 (1,330,000.00) j Howlett Sonoma Land Trust Contribution 

06/30/2017 (3,oo0,000.00) Wild Life Conservancy Contrib . Stewarts PtJ 

06/30/2017 (1,000,000.00) j California State Coastal Conservancy Contrib. Stewarts Pt 

(5,574,858.57) I 
========;I ' 

I 

A capital asset donation of $12,510 was received that is recorded as an increase in net position 

but not the statement of revenue and expenditures in accordance with GASB requirements. 

• Contributions to Other Governments relate to Matching Grant expenditures 

747 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 100 •Santa Rosa, California 95401-4850 
707.565.7360 •Fax 707.565.7359 • www.sonomaopenspace.org 

ATTACHMENT 2 

http:www.sonomaopenspace.org
http:5,574,858.57
http:1,000,000.00
http:3,oo0,000.00
http:1,330,000.00
http:141,000.00
http:7,170.00
http:75,000.00
http:21,428.57


Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
Open Space Special Tax Account ("OSSTA") 

Cash and Fund Balance Analysis 
June 30, 2017 

Fund Balance 
Beginning Fund Balance (7/1/2016) $ 56,589,038 

Tax Revenue 23,189,660 
Investment Income 304,775 

TOTAL INFLOWS 23,494,435 

Transfer to SCAPOSD 
Capital Acquistions 6,556,579 
District Operations 6,949,020 
IPAOM Fund 2,318,966 

Total Transfer from OSSTA to SCAPOSD 15,824,565 
Bond Payments 7,401,542 

TOTAL OUTFLOWS 23,226,107 

NET CHANGE TO OSSTA 26.8,328 

ENDING FUND BALANCE $ 56,857,366 

Cash Balance 
Beginning Cash Balance (7/1/2016) $ 52,958,777 

Tax Revenue 22,928,404 
Investment Income 604,920 

TOTAL INFLOWS 23,533,324 

Transfer to SCAPOSD 
Capital Acquistions 6,556,579 
District Qperations 6,949,020 
IPAO.M Fund 2,318,966 

Total Transfer from OSSTA to SCAPOSD 15,824,565 
Bon..d Payments 7,401,542 

TQTAL OUTFLOWS · 23,226,107 

·NET CHANGE TO OSSTA 307,217 

ENDING CASH BALANCE $ 53,265,994 

Note: Cash and Fund Balance Analysis differ due to the basis of accounting. In the cash basis, changes 
in accruals such as sales tax or investment income receivable are not reflected. The fund balance 
analysis reflects amounts shown in accrual basis financial statements. The cash basis report has been 
adjusted to reflect the change from year to year of receivables. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Basic Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 


June 30, 2017 


sjackson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2a

sjackson
Typewritten Text

sjackson
Typewritten Text



 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 
     
                      

 

 

 

 

















































































Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Basic Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 


June 30, 2017 


Table of Contents 

Page 

Advisory Committee, Fiscal Oversight Commission, and Directors ...........................................................  i-iii 


Introduction .................................................................................................................................................... v-vi 


Financial Section 

Independent Auditor’s Report ...................................................................................................................... 1 – 3 


Management’s Discussion and Analysis  ................................................................................................. 5 – 10 


Basic Financial Statements: 
 Government-wide Financial Statements: 


Statement of Net Position  .................................................................................................................  11 

Statement of Activities  ......................................................................................................................  12 


 Fund Financial Statements: 

Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund  ...............................................................................................  13 


             Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the 


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Statement of Net Position ..................................................................................................................  13 


   Changes in Fund Balance – Governmental Fund ........................................................................... 14 

            Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,  


Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance of 

                       Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities ..................................................................  15 

       Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ........................................................................................... 17 – 31 


Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related 

  Ratios as of the Measurement Date ........................................................................................... 34 


       Schedule of Contributions ......................................................................................................................... 35 


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual – 

Governmental Fund -  ........................................................................................................................  36 


Notes to Required Supplementary Information .......................................................................................  37 


Other Supplementary Information 

       Schedule of Interests in Land ........................................................................................................... 41 – 48 


 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 





































Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Basic Financial Statements 

For the Fiscal Year Ended 


June 30, 2017 


Table of Contents 

Page 

Statistical Section 

Sales Tax Revenue in Sonoma County – 1990 Measure C and 2006 Measure F – 
     Last 10 Years ........................................................................................................................................ 50 


Debt Service Required for the Open Space Special Tax Account Measure F Bonds .............................. 51 


Cash Balance in Open Space Special Tax Account – Last Five Years .................................................... 51 


Other Independent Auditor’s Reports: 


Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on  

Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed  

In Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ...................................................................... 53 – 54 


 



Sonoma County Open Space 

Roster of Advisory Committee Members 


 
 
As of June 30, 2017 the District’s Advisory Committee consisted of the following members: 
 
 
Jan McFarland ................................................................................. 
   
 First District Representative 
 
John McChesney ...............................................................................  
 First District Representative  

 
Paul Martin ......................................................................................  
 Second District Representative  

 
Elly Grogan ....................................................................................... 
   Third District Representative 

 
Steve Rabinowitsh ............................................................................ 
  
 Third District Representative 
 
Bill Smith ........................................................................................  
 Fourth District Representative 

 
Doug Lipton ....................................................................................  
 Fourth District Representative 

 
Evan Wiig .......................................................................................  
 Fifth District Representative  

 
John Nagle ........................................................................................  
 Fifth District Representative  

 
Neysa Hinton ....................................................................................  
 Mayors’ and Councilmembers’ 

 
David Cook .......................................................................................  
  
 Mayors’ and Councilmembers’ 
 
John Dell’Osso (Chair)   ...................................................................  
 Mayors’ and Councilmembers’ 

 
Curt Nichols (Chair Pro Tem) ........................................................  
 Business Representative  

 
Don McEnhill (Vice Chair) .............................................................  
 Environmental Representative  

 
Cary Fargo .......................................................................................  
 Real Estate Representative  

 
Tawny Tesconi .................................................................................. 
 Agriculture 

 
Halei Trowbridge ..............................................................................  
 Youth Representative 

 
Eddie Smith ......................................................................................  
 Youth Representative 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

i 



 

 
   

 

 
  

 
  

 
      

 
    

 










 


 




 
 

 
 


 

Sonoma County Open Space 

Roster of Fiscal Oversight Commission Members 


As of June 30, 2017, the District’s Fiscal Oversight Commission consisted of the following members: 


Michael J. Sangiacomo........................................................................................................................ District 1
 

Todd Mendoza 

Jeff Owen ..........................................................................................................................................  Alternate
 

.............................................................................................................................. . District 2 


Regina De La Cruz.............................................................................. ……………………………... District 3
 

Bob Anderson …………….......................................................................................................... …. District 4
 

Eric Koenigshofer ............................................................................................................................  District 5
 

ii 



Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 


and Open Space District 



Roster of Board Members 


 
 
As of June 30, 2017, the District’s Board of Directors consisted of the following members: 
 
 
 
 
 

Directors District Term Expires 
  

  Susan Gorin District 1 January 2021 
 

 David Rabbitt District 2 January 2019 
 

 Shirlee Zane (Chair) District 3 January 2021 
 

 James Gore (Vice Chair) District 4 January 2019 
 
Lynda Hopkins  District 5  January 2021 
 

 

  

  

  

  

iii 



 

 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
 

 
 
  

 
 

  

Introduction 

The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District (the District) was created and 
funded with a quarter-cent sales tax in 1990 by a vote of the Sonoma County electorate for a period of 
twenty years. The mission of the District is to permanently preserve the diverse landscapes of Sonoma 
County for future generations, including working farms and ranches, greenbelts and community 
separators between and around urban areas, natural areas and wildlife habitat, and land for public access 
and passive recreation. In November 2006, voters overwhelmingly approved Measure F, which 
reauthorized the District and extended the quarter-cent sales tax through 2031. Measure F began on April 
1, 2011. Since its inception, the District has protected over 112,600 acres with an acquisition cost of 
$390.7 million; and today, ranks as one of the top open space and farmland conservation programs in the 
nation. 

The District is a separate legal entity and has specific purposes and powers, which are set out in Public 
Resources Code Sections 5500 et seq.1 Primary financing for the District comes from the voter-approved 
0.25 percent sales tax. The District is thus different from Sonoma County departments, which are created 
by the Board of Supervisors for internal administrative convenience, but are not separate legal entities. 

Through March 2011, the Open Space Authority (the Authority) levied the sales tax and ensured that the 
District’s open space purchases were consistent with the voter-approved expenditure plan. The Authority 
contracted with the District to acquire open space (planning, appraisal, negotiation, and stewardship). On 
April 1, 2011, the Authority reorganized as the Sonoma County Open Space Fiscal Oversight 
Commission to provide fiscal oversight of the District’s operations. Measure F authorized the County to 
levy sales tax that funds the District and also required the County to enter into a contract with the District. 
The contract dedicates the sales tax revenue to the implementation of the voter approved 2006 
Expenditure Plan and gives the District authority for the budgeting and expenditure of the sales tax 
revenue in accordance with the Plan. The District partners with willing landowners, public agencies and 
non-profit organizations to protect the open space values of land in perpetuity, through agreements with 
landowners (conservation easements) and through outright purchase of land. 

The District’s status as a separate legal entity with specific powers affects the types of activities in which 
the District may engage. Unlike Sonoma County, which generally may spend its general fund revenues 
for activities the Board of Supervisors determines benefit the public good,2 the District may only expend 
its sales tax revenue to further the purposes specified in the voter approved Expenditure Plan.3  Unlike the 
County, the District has no general land use authority, and does not exercise general regulatory “police 
powers.” 

1 See Public Resources Code Sections 5506.5 and 5506.6 and Sonoma County Measure A, 1990 General Election 
ballot. Unless otherwise specified, all section references are to the Public Resources Code. 

2 See Government Code Section 26227. 

3 See Revenue & Taxation Code Section 7285.5 and the contract between the District and the Sonoma County Open 
Space Authority. See also Golden Bridge District v. Luehring (1970) 4 Cal. App.3d 204. 

v 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
   
 
   
 

                                                 
 

 
 
  

Because the District is a separate entity, the District’s revenues, expenses and assets are held and 
accounted for separately from Sonoma County’s.4  When County officials perform services for the 
District, they are separately paid for those services by the District, pursuant to agreements between the 
District and the County. Similarly, when District personnel perform services for the County, the County 
pays the District for those services. Payments are subject to fiscal oversight by the Sonoma County Open 
Space Fiscal Oversight Commission to assure the public that they are consistent with the Expenditure 
Plan and that they are based on actual cost. The District holds separate title to its real property and assets, 
and the County may not use District property or funds for County purposes absent an appropriate 
agreement that is consistent with the voter approved Expenditure Plan.  The District is also subject to 
different laws than the County regarding acquisition and disposition of property.5 

4See Section 4 of Sonoma County Ordinance No. 5677R (“The Sonoma County Open Space, Clean Water and 
Farmland Protection Measure”). 

5 For instance, see Public Resources Section 5540. 

vi 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Financial Section 



 

 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

1 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 


 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
 

To the Board of Directors 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
Santa Rosa, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, and the General Fund of the 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, (the District) a component unit the County of 
Sonoma, California as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

1



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 




Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities and the General Fund of the District as of June 30, 2017, and the respective 
changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis and Other Required Supplementary Information as listed in the Table of Contents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements. The Introductory Section, Supplemental Information and Statistical Section 
listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 

The Supplemental Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In 
our opinion, the Supplemental Information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

The Introductory Section and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on 
them. 

2 




 

 

 

 

 
 
 




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 4, 2017, on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

October 4, 2017 

3 




 

 

This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  


 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the Sonoma County Agriculture Preservation and Open Space District 
(the District), we offer readers of the District’s financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2017. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with the District’s financial statements (pages 11-15) and the accompanying 
notes to the basic financial statements (pages 17-31). 

Financial Highlights 

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded its liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $398,086,581 
(net position), of which $5,266,545 is reported as unrestricted net position. 

The District’s total net position increased by $11,971,830. This increase was primarily 
the result of contributions for capital acquisitions from both the Open Space Special Tax 
Account (OSSTA) and private donations. 

The District recorded program revenue of $21,893,775 comprised of contributions from 
the OSSTA, grants from other governmental and not for profit organizations, and 
donations of capital assets. The District reported $9,962,807 in program expense 
including salaries and employee benefits, services and supplies and contributions to other 
governments. The District reported resulting net program revenues of $11,930,968. 

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental fund reported an 
ending fund balance of $6,857,150, a decrease of $168,982 from the prior year, with a 
fund balance commitment of $5,053,377 for initial public access, operation and 
maintenance. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic 
financial statements. The District’s financial statements comprise three components: 1) 
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances in a manner 
similar to a private-sector business, and are composed of the statement of net position and 
the statement of activities. 

5
 



 

 

 

 

 
   

 

 

 

 


 

The statement of net position presents information about the financial position of the 
District, reflecting all of the District’s (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources, and 
(b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources on a full accrual basis, with the difference 
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net 
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is 
improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information about the District’s revenues and 
expenses, also on a full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues and 
expenses of the District. The statement of activities reflects how the government’s net 
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. 

All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows 
in future fiscal periods (e.g., unused vacation leave). 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11-12 of this report. 

Fund financial statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with finance-related legal requirements. The District’s fund is a governmental fund. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike 
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus 
on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide 
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental 
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental fund statements of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The District’s governmental fund accounts for its activities, which include preservation of 
open space in the District’s boundaries. The District adopts an annual appropriated 
budget for its funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided to 
demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

6
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Net Position 

Increase 

2017 2016 (Decrease) 

Current and other assets $       7,668,981 $       7,905,890 $ (236,909) 

Capital assets    392,820,036   380,426,646 12,393,390 

Total assets   400,489,017   388,332,536 12,156,481 

Deferred outflows of resouces 

Current liabilities outstanding 

        873,330 

        995,076 

      1,449,022 

      1,039,827 

       (575,692) 

(44,751) 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resouces 

Net position: 

      2,080,910 

      3,075,986 

        199,780 

      2,382,712 

      3,422,539 

        244,268 

(301,802) 

(346,553) 

         (44,488) 

Net investment in capital assets   392,820,036   380,426,646 12,393,390 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

      5,266,545 

$   398,086,581 

      5,688,105 

$   386,114,751 

(421,560) 

$ 11,971,830 

  

 


 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13-15 of this 
report. 

Notes to the basic financial statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
basic financial statements can be found on pages 17-31 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position. In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources 
exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $398,086,581 at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position, $392,820,036, reflects its 
investment in capital assets (e.g., land and easements). 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report positive balances in all 
categories of net position. The District’s total net position increased by $11,971,830. 
This increase was primarily the result of contributions for capital acquisitions from both 
the Open Space Special Tax Account (OSSTA) and private donations. 

7
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

                  

      

              

              

        
            

      

  


 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 

Open space preservation 
General Revenues: 

Investment income and other 

2017 

$ 21,893,775 

53,234 

Changes in Net Position 

$ 

2016 

13,425,586 $ 

11,698 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

8,468,189 

41,536 

Total revenues 21,947,009 13,437,284 8,509,725 

Expenses: 

Program Expenses: 

Open space preservation 9,962,807 7,903,595 2,059,212 

Total expenses 9,962,807 7,903,595 2,059,212 

Change in net position before transfers 
Transfers 

11,984,202 
(12,372) 

5,533,689 
(10,437,499) 

6,450,513 
10,425,127 

Change in net position 11,971,830 (4,903,810) 16,875,640 

Net position - beginning of the year 386,114,751 391,018,561 (4,903,810) 

Net position - end of the year $ 398,086,581 $ 386,114,751 $ 11,971,830 

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Fund 

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance 
with legal and governmental accounting requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the District’s governmental fund is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in 
assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance 
may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net resources available for spending at the 
end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental fund reported an 
ending fund balance of $6,857,150, a decrease of $168,982 from the prior year. Of this 
amount, $1,364 represents non-spendable fund balance associated with prepaid expenses, 
$5,053,377 represents fund balance committed to initial public access, operations and 
maintenance, and $1,802,409 represents fund balance assigned to contract encumbrances. 
As of June 30, 2017 the District did not report any unassigned fund balance. The lack of 
unassigned fund balance as of June 30, 2017 is the result of timing of contributions from 
OSSTA and does not negatively affect the District’s ongoing ability to meet obligations 
to citizens and creditors. 

8
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
  

	 

	 

 

 


 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The material difference between the original budget and the final amended budget can be 
briefly summarized as follows: 

	 During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 expenditure appropriations were 
increased for rollover of prior year encumbrances net of prior year encumbrances 
released. Increases due to these encumbrances amounted to $2,353,305, $406,193, 
and $300,483 respectively for services and supplies, contributions to other 
governments and capital outlay. 

	 Appropriations for capital outlay were decreased by $403,000 during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2017 with corresponding increases to services and supplies 
($345,000) and contributions to other governments ($58,000). These adjustments 
were a result of completion of matching grant and maintenance projects in excess 
of projections. 

Capital Assets 

The District’s net investment in capital assets, as of June 30, 2017, amounts to 
$392,820,036. This investment in capital assets includes land, easements and other 
intangible assets, construction in progress, land improvements, machinery and 
equipment, and pre-acquisition costs. The total increase in the District’s investment in 
capital assets for the current fiscal year was $12,393,390. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

 During the year, over 5,600 acres of land were protected in perpetuity through 
the acquisition of 3 conservation easements. 

 The District acquired a new car during FY16-17 for $32,214. 

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the 
basic financial statements. 

Debt Administration 

The District had no outstanding debt as of June 30, 2017. The debt service on the 2007 
Series A and B (refunded by issuance of Series 2015 A) Measure F sales tax revenue 
bond issuance began in fiscal year 2011-2012. As required by Measure F, the County of 
Sonoma issued this debt and administers the debt service using Measure F sales tax 
proceeds. This activity is accounted for in the Open Space Special Tax Account 
(OSSTA), which is administered by the County Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax 
Collector Department. 

9
 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 


 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

The primary funding for the District comes from a voter approved one quarter percent 
sales tax that was initially imposed for a period of 20 years ending the first quarter of 
2011. In November 2006 the voters passed Measure F, an initiative which extends the tax 
for another 20 years ending the first quarter of 2031. The sales tax revenue is accounted 
for in the Open Space Special Tax Account which is administered by the County Auditor-
Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector. Sales tax revenue has continued to increase as the 
economy has improved and is anticipated to grow slightly in FY 17-18. 

Property values have also seen an increase as the economy has improved which could 
impact the cost of conservation easements. 

Of importance for the District in FY17-18 is the completion of the Vital Lands Initiative, 
the Districts comprehensive plan which will guide the priorities and budgets through 
2031 and beyond. 

The budget for FY 17-18 shows minor changes in staffing and amounts budgeted for 
services and supplies. The budget for land and easement acquisition is developed each 
year considering the acquisitions that are intended to be completed. Since projects may 
take multiple years to complete some projects are budgeted more than one year. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2018. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances 
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of 
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space 
District, 747 Mendocino Avenue, Suite 100, Santa Rosa, CA 95401-4850. The District 
can also be reached by telephone at (707) 565-7360, via email at openspace@sonoma-
county.org or visit the website at http://www.sonomaopenspace.org/ 

10
 

http:http://www.sonomaopenspace.org
http:county.org


              
            
                

     
         

     

            

            

            
            

         
              

         

            

            
 

     
         


 

 


 

 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and
 
Open Space District
 

Statement of Net Position
 
June 30, 2017
 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments (Note 2) $7,240,734 
Deposits with others 25,000 
Due from other governments 401,883 
Prepaid expenses 1,364 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets (Note 3): 

Non-depreciable 391,555,839 
Depreciable, net 1,264,197 

Total assets 400,489,017 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to pensions (Note 8) 873,330 

Total deferred outflows of resources 873,330 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 781,831 
Compensated absences (Notes 1.F. and 4) 213,245 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Net pension liability (Note 8) 2,050,910 
Pollution remediation (Note 9) 30,000 

Total liabilities 3,075,986 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to pensions (Note 8) 199,780 

Total deferred inflows of resources 199,780 

Net Position (Note 1.G.) 
Net investment in capital assets 392,820,036 
Unrestricted 5,266,545 

Total net position $398,086,581 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

11



        

        

        

        


 

 


 

 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and
 
Open Space District
 

Statement of Activities
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017
 

Program Expenses 

Open Space Preservation: 

Salaries and employee benefits (Note 6) $3,614,488 

Services and supplies 3,423,273 

Depreciation 55,061 
Contribution to other governments 2,655,240 
Loss on disposal of capital assets (Note 3) 214,745 

Total program expenses 9,962,807 

Program Revenues 

Intergovernmental: 

Contributions from Open Space Special Tax Account for: 

Operations (Note 5) 6,949,020 

Capital acquisitions (Note 5) 6,556,579 

Initial public access, operations and maintenance  (Note 5) 2,318,966 

Grants and contributions: 

State of California 328,426 

Federal 142,967 

Donations 5,587,369 

Rental income 10,448 

Total program revenues 21,893,775 

Net program revenues 11,930,968 

General Revenues 

Investment earnings 27,522 

Miscellaneous 25,712 

Transfers 

Transfers in 4,854 

Transfers out (17,226) 

Total general revenues and transfers 40,862 

Change in net position 11,971,830 

Net position - beginning of year 386,114,751 

Net position - end of year $398,086,581 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

12




 June 30, 2017
 

Assets 

Cash and investments (Note 2) $7,240,734 

Deposits with others 25,000 
Due from other governments 401,883 
Prepaid expenses 1,364 

Total assets $7,668,981 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $781,831 
Pollution Remediation 30,000 

Total liabilities 811,831 

Fund balance (Note 1.H.): 

Nonspendable 1,364 

Committed 5,053,377 

Assigned 1,802,409 

Total fund balance 6,857,150 

Total liabilities and fund balance $7,668,981 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2017 

Fund balances - total governmental funds $6,857,150 

Amount reported for governmental activities 

in the statement of net position are different because: 

 Capital assets used in governmental activities 

are not financial resources and therefore are 

not reported in the governmental funds 392,820,036 

 Deferred outflows of resources reported in the 

statement of net position 873,330 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable 

in the current period and therefore are not 

reported in the governmental funds: 

Compensated absences (213,245) 

Pension liability (2,050,910) 

 Deferred inflows of resources reported in the 

statement of net position (199,780) 

Net position of governmental activities $398,086,581 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 


 

 


 

 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and
 
Open Space District
 

Balance Sheet
 
Governmental Fund
 

13



       
       

     

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 
Open Space District 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Fund 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental revenue: 

Contributions from the Open Space Special Tax Account for: 
Operations (Note 5) $6,949,020 
Capital acquisition (Note 5) 6,556,579 
Initial public access, operations and maintenance  (Note 5) 2,318,966 

Grants and contributions: 
State of California 328,426 
Federal 142,967 

Donations 5,574,858 
Interest on pooled cash 27,522 
Miscellaneous 36,161 

Total revenues 21,934,499 

Expenditures 
Salaries and employee benefits (Note 6) 3,361,910 
Services and supplies 3,423,273 
Contribution to other government 2,655,240 
Capital outlay 12,650,686 

Total expenditures 22,091,109 

Excess of revenue over expenditures (156,610) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Transfers in 4,854 

Transfers out (17,226) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (12,372) 

Net change in fund balance (168,982) 

Fund balance - beginning of year 7,026,132 

Fund balance - end of year $6,857,150 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

14



 

 

 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Fund 

to the Statement of Activities 

Open Space District 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities 
 are different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental fund ($168,982) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation 

12,650,686 
(55,061) 

The statement of activities reports gains and losses arising from the sale or disposal of 
capital assets as the difference between the proceeds from sale of capital assets and 
the book value of the sold capital assets, while governmental funds report the proceeds 
from sale of capital assets. The difference is the book value of capital assets retired. (214,745) 

Donations of capital assets increase net position in the statement of 
activities but do not appear in the governmental funds because they 
are not financial resources 12,510 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use 
of current resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds: 

Change in net pension liability 
Change in compensated absences 

(229,402) 
(23,176) 

Change in net position of governmental activities $11,971,830 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District (the District) is a 
dependent Special District formed under Government Code Section 65562 and 5500 et seq. of the 
Public Resources Code to further State policy on the preservation of open space.  The boundaries 
of the District are coterminous with the boundaries of the County of Sonoma.  The Board of 
Directors of the District is composed of the members of the County Board of Supervisors who 
serve ex officio as District Directors. As such their duties and loyalties as District Directors are 
separate and distinct from their duties and loyalties as County Supervisors.  Financial activity of 
the District is recorded in the County of Sonoma’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as a 
Non-Major Special Revenue Fund. The Open Space Special Tax Account (OSSTA), which 
records the sales tax received and funds the acquisitions and operations of the District, is recorded 
as a Major Special Revenue Fund in the County’s financial statements.  The Net Position of both 
funds are shown as restricted for Agricultural Preservation and Open Space on the County’s 
Government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

The District was formed by a 70.6% positive vote of the County Electorate during the November 
1990 elections. 

Primary financing for the District was through a contract with the Sonoma County Open Space 
Authority (Authority). Effective April 1, 2011, as required by Measure F, the quarter cent sales tax 
is being levied by the County of Sonoma. The sales tax revenue is accounted for in the Open 
Space Special Tax Account which is administered by the County Auditor as outlined in a contract 
between the County of Sonoma and the District.  The Open Space Fiscal Oversight Commission 
provides fiscal oversight of the operations of the District. The District may be financed by gifts, 
grants, special taxes, general obligation bonds, and other sources of revenue authorized by law or 
any combination thereof. 

The District and the Open Space Authority entered into a contract on February 4, 1991, which was 
amended on March 26, 1992. Among other things, the contract required the Authority to finance 
the purchase of interests in land by the District in exchange for the District’s agreement to 
administer an acquisition program and to hold and maintain interests in land.  With respect to 
individual purchases of interest in land, the contract further provided for a three-party escrow with 
the seller submitting an executed easement agreement in exchange for an agreed upon price, the 
District then recorded title to the interest in land and the Authority submitted the purchase price 
and a proportionate share of the closing costs. Thus the Authority financed the purchase price and 
the District recorded title to the interest in the land.  That agreement terminated March 31, 2011. 
Beginning April, 2011, the OSSTA funds the acquisitions and the District continues to retain title.  

The District has adopted an acquisition plan and has a staff of 26.5 permanent positions. As of June 
30, 2017 the District has protected approximately 112,600 acres through conservation or open 
space easements and property held in fee. 

17 




 

 
 

  

   

   

   
 

  

   

  

  

 

 

 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) report information on all of the activities of the District.  

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment is offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment. Other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds.   

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are 
recognized when measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collectible 
within 365 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims judgments are recorded only when 
payment is due. 

D. Deposits and Investments 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31 and No. 72, the District reports cash and investments 
at fair value in the balance sheet and recognizes the corresponding change in the fair value of 
investments in the year in which the change occurred.   

E. Capital Assets 

Capital asset balances at year end are reported in the government-wide financial statements in the 
Statement of Net Position. Capital and intangible assets are recorded at historical cost and include 
machinery and equipment, non-depreciable land and easements. The historical cost of the assets 
include the District’s cost for the assets as well as donations applied to the purchase and associated 
costs such as direct labor, legal fees, appraisal fees, negotiation fees and other incidental expenses. 

18 




 

 

    

 
 

   

 
 

 

 

    

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 











	

	

	 

 

 

	

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 




Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

F. 	Compensated Absences 

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick 
pay benefits. The District accrues the liability for vacation benefits only, in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 16. Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide 
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if 
they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignation or retirement. 

G. 	 Net Position 

Net position is classified into three components; 1) net investment in capital assets, 2) restricted, 
and 3) unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

	 Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets 
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balance of associated notes payable. 

 Restricted net position – This component of net position consists of net position with limits 
on their use that are imposed by outside parties. 

 Unrestricted net position – This component of net position consists of net position that do not 
meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets”. 

H. 	Fund Balance 

The District’s fund financial statements report governmental fund balances using the following 
classifications as stated in the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54:   

	 Nonspendable – amounts that are not in a spendable form or are to be maintained intact. 

	 Restricted – amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposed stipulated by external 
resource providers or through enabling legislation. 

	 Committed – amounts that can be used only for the specific purposed determined by a formal 
action of the government’s highest level of decision making authority. 

	 Assigned – amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposed determined 
either by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates 
the authority. 

	 Unassigned – the residual classification for the general fund and includes all amounts not 
contained in the other classifications. This amount is technically available for any purpose.    

In general, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, restricted resources are 
used first. When expenditures are made of unrestricted resources, the District first applies 
committed, then assigned and then unassigned resources. 

19 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  
 

 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

I. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

J. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance sheet reports a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position or balance sheet reports a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a 
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

K. Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The 
District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which 
inputs used in measuring fair value are observable in the market.   

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that are 
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.   

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair 
value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 

20 




 
The amount of cash at June 30, 2017 is as follows: 
 

Pooled investment in County Treasury $ 7,240,584 
Petty cash 150 

Total 
 

$ 7,240,734 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 


and Open Space District 



Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 



 
NOTE 2 – Cash and Investments 
 
The District follows the County’s practice of pooling cash and investments with the County Treasurer, 
except for the cash on hand used as a petty cash fund. 

The District’s cash and investments presented above include an unrealized loss adjustment to fair value of 
$20,700. 

Investment in the Sonoma County Treasurer’s Investment Pool 

The District’s cash is pooled with the Sonoma County Treasurer, who acts as disbursing agent for the 
District. The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial 
statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the Treasury 
Pool for the entire Treasury Pool portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  These 
investments are stated at a Level 2 fair value as required by generally accepted accounting principles. 
The balance available for withdrawal is based on accounting records maintained by the Treasury Pool, 
which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Interest earned on investments pooled with the Treasurer 
is allocated quarterly to the appropriate fund based on its respective average daily balance for that quarter. 
The Investment Oversight Committee has oversight for all monies deposited into the Treasury Pool. 

Investment Guidelines 

The District’s pooled cash and investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines 
established by the County Treasurer and approved by the Board of Supervisors.  The objectives of the 
policy are, in order of priority: safety of principal, liquidity and yield.   

The policy addresses the soundness of financial institutions in which the County will deposit funds, types 
of investment instruments as permitted by the California Government Code 53601, and the percentage of 
the portfolio that may be invested in certain instruments with longer terms to maturity.    

A copy of the County investment policy is available upon request from the Sonoma County Auditor-
Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector’s Office at 585 Fiscal Drive, Room 100, Santa Rosa, California, 
95403-2871. 

21 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 2 – Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from 
rising interest rates, one of the ways that the Treasury Pool manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from 
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturing evenly over time as 
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.  

As of June 30, 2017, approximately 36.71 percent of the securities in the Treasury Pool had maturities of 
one year or less as reported by the Sonoma County Treasurer.  Of the remainder, only .98 percent had a 
maturity of more than five years. 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. The Treasury Pool does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to 
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.   

With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in 
marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in 
securities through the use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as the Treasury Pool). 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the County contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any 
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. For a listing of investments in any 
one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, or external investment pools) that represent 
5% or more of total County investments, refer to the 2017 Sonoma County Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

22 




 

 
 

 

 

           
                                                                                        

 
                                                                          
                                                                                         

                                                            

                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                       

                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                                                    
                                                                                                    
                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                   

                                                                                   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

                           
                                       

                

 




















Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 3 – Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Retirements 

Transfers and 
Adjustments 

Ending 
Balance 

Capital assets not being 
depreciated:
 Land 

Intangible assets - easements 
Land and easements-

preacquisition costs 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being 
depreciated 

$ 59,059,673 
319,133,344 

982,264 
177,283 

379,352,564 

$ -
12,198,380 

366,365 
66,237 

12,630,982 

$ -
-

(214,745) 
-

(214,745) 

-$ 59,059,673$ 
312,079 331,643,803 

(312,079) 821,805 
(212,962) 30,558 

(212,962) 391,555,839 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Land improvements 
Intangible assets 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated: 

735,372 
-

411,326 
51,664 

1,198,362 

-
-
-

32,214 
32,214 

-
-
-
-
-

-
212,962 

-
-

212,962 

735,372 
212,962 
411,326 
83,878 

1,443,538 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements 
Intangible assets 
Infrastructure 
Machinery and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets being 

depreciated, net 

(48,904) 
-

(58,911) 
(16,465) 

(124,280) 

1,074,082 

(31,568) 
-

(16,453) 
(7,040) 

(55,061) 

(22,847) 

-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

212,962 

(80,472) 
-

(75,364) 
(23,505) 

(179,341) 

1,264,197 

Total capital assets $ 380,426,646 $ 12,608,135 $ (214,745) -$ 392,820,036$ 

Land and easements - pre-acquisition costs represent funds expended towards the acquisition of land and 
easements that have not closed escrow. Upon the close of escrow these funds will be moved into the land 
and easement categories. In the event a property is not acquired, the funds associated with that property 
will be written off. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District recorded a loss on disposal of $214,745 for pre-
acquisition costs associated with properties that are no longer being targeted for acquisition. 

NOTE 4 – Long Term Liabilities 

Long term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Beginning 
Balance Additions Retirements Ending Balance 

Compensated Absences 
Net Pension Liability 

190,069 $ 
2,352,712 

244,666 $ 
30,699 

(221,490) $ 
(332,501) 

213,245 $ 
2,050,910 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,542,781 $ 275,365 $ (553,991) $ 2,264,155 $ 

23 




 

 

 

 

 

 
 

              

                         

             
 

 

 
 

 

 
 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 5 – Intergovernmental Revenue and Open Space Special Tax Account (OSSTA) 

As defined by Measure F, proceeds from the quarter cent sales tax are deposited into the Open Space 
Special Tax Account (OSSTA). The County Auditor-Controller-Treasurer-Tax Collector administers that 
account, thus it is not included within this report. For the fiscal year 2016-2017 the County recorded 
$23,189,660 in sales tax in OSSTA. For the fiscal year 2016-17, the District recorded intergovernmental 
revenue of $15,824,565 from OSSTA with $6,556,579 going towards the purchase of Agricultural 
Preservation and Open Space assets, $6,949,020 for District operations and $2,318,966 to the O&M 
Fund. As of June 30, 2017 the cumulative calculation of funds available for expenditure on initial public 
access, operations and maintenance within the 10 percent cap was $5,053,377. 

NOTE 6 – Capitalized Labor 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 the District reclassified labor costs directly associated with 
specific land and easement acquisitions as capital outlay. The following schedule presents salaries and 
benefits paid to or on behalf of District employees and the net effect of labor capitalized to acquisition 
projects: 

Statement of 
Activities 

Statement of 
Revenues, 

Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund 

Balance 

Gross salaries and benefits 

Less: Capitalized salaries and benefits 

3,797,775 $ 3,545,197 $ 

(183,287) (183,287) 

Salaries and employee benefits 3,614,488 $ 3,361,910 $ 

NOTE 7 – Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts:  theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The District is covered by the County’s self-insurance 
program, which is accounted for in the County’s Risk Management Internal Service Fund.  The District is 
covered under this program for general liability, auto liability, public employees’ performance/dishonesty 
and property insurance. 

The County maintains self-insurance retention of $1,000,000 per occurrence for general and automobile 
liability. Excess liability is maintained through participation in the California State Association of 
Counties, Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA). Limits of this coverage are $25,000,000.  

The County maintains “All Risk” property insurance including flood and earthquake coverage through 
participation in the CSAC-EIA Property Insurance Program.  Limits of coverage are $600,000,000 per 
occurrence for All Risk, $550,000,000 for flood (limits vary in FEMA flood zones) and earthquake 
coverage with shared limits of $715,000,000. Deductibles for these perils are $50,000 to $100,000 per 
occurrence. 

24 




 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 7 – Risk Management (Continued) 

The County of Sonoma is permissibly self-insured for workers’ compensation for its employees and 
volunteers. Excess workers’ compensation coverage is obtained through participation in the CSAC-EIA. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the District paid annual premiums to the County for this 
insurance coverage in the amount of $16,106. Settlements have not exceeded coverage for each of the 
past three fiscal years. 

NOTE 8 – Employee Retirement Plan 

Plan Description 

The Sonoma County Employees’ Retirement Association (SCERA) was organized on January 1, 1946, 
under the provisions of the 1937 County Employees Retirement Act.  SCERA, a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan), serves as a distribution agent for County Postemployment 
Healthcare Plan (PH Plan), and is legally separate of the County.   

The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) was signed into law by 
Governor Jerry Brown on September 12, 2012, with an effective date of January 1, 2013.  All General and 
Safety employees hired on or after January 1, 2013, with the exception of employees who are eligible for 
reciprocity with another qualified California retirement system, are part of a new tier called Plan B. 

Plan members include all permanent employees appointed to a permanent position of at least half time for 
employees of the County of Sonoma, Valley of the Moon Fire District (District), and Superior Courts of 
California. Plan members are classified as either General or Safety (Safety e.g., eligible Sheriff, Fire, and 
Probation Department employees). Membership becomes effective on the first day of service.  The Plan 
provides benefits as defined by the law upon retirement, death, or disability of members and may be 
amended by the Board of Supervisors and then shall be implemented by the Board of Retirement.   

The financial statements for the County (the primary government) contain additional financial 
information for the defined pension benefits, which may not be presented here. 

SCERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the pension plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Sonoma 
County Employee's Retirement Association, 433 Aviation Blvd., Suite 100, Santa Rosa, CA 95403-1069 
or by calling 707-565-8100. 

25 




 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 8 – Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the County are determined by an independent 
actuary, approved by the SCERA Board of Retirement, and adopted by the Board of Supervisors.  The 
contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 were based on the Plan’s valuation dated 
December 31, 2014. The contribution rates determined in each actuarial valuation take effect at the 
beginning of the fiscal year starting at least twelve months after the beginning of the valuation year, 
except when significant benefit or actuarial assumption changes occur.  Plan A General members are 
required to contribute 10.35% -13.52% of their annual covered salary based upon the member’s age at the 
date of entry into the system and Plan B General members are required to contribute 10.45% of their 
annual covered salary. The County is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance 
the coverage of their employees through periodic contributions at actuarially determined rates.  Employer 
and member contributions are funded and recognized through the County and District payroll systems via 
employer benefit payments and employee deductions. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the 
District contributed $332,501 or approximately 17.23% of covered payroll.   

Post employment healthcare benefits are funded by employer contributions made on a periodic basis. The 
rate is determined annually by SCERA and approved by the Board of Supervisors. The rate is determined 
by dividing the estimated annual premium cost by the annual covered payroll.  The financial statements of 
the County of Sonoma (the primary government) contain the financial information for the post-
employment benefits, which are not presented here because the District’s portion cannot be separated 
from the whole. 

Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows or Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pension 

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $2,050,910 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016 and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all Pension Plan 
participants, actuarially determined. At December 31, 2016, the District’s proportion was 0.52%, which 
was a decrease of 0.05% from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2015. 

26 




 Year ending 
June 30, Amount 

2018  $         205,624 
2019              236,892 
2020               93,237 
2021

Total

             (23,030) 

 $         512,723 
 

 

 

 
 

                      
 

                       

                                 
                                     

 
 

 

 

 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 8 – Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $229,402.  Pension expense 
represents the change in the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual 
contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, actuarial gain/loss, actuarial 
assumptions or methods, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience 6,838 $ 112,449$ 
Changes in assumptions 203,362 -
Net difference between projected and actual earning on retirement 432,277 

plan investments -
Changes in proportion and differences between District contributions 

and proportionate share of contributions 70,026 87,331 
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 160,827 -

Total 873,330 $ 199,780$ 

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion 
of changes to net pension liability to be recognized in future periods in a systematic and rational manner. 

The $160,827 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

27 




 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 8 – Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 7.25% as of December 31, 2016, the 
measurement date. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan 
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will 
be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.25 percent) or 1-
percentage point higher (8.25 percent) that the current rate. 

1% Decrease 
6.25% 

Discount Rate 
7.25% 

1% Increase 
8.25% 

District's proportionate share of the 
net pension plan liability 3,727,344 $ 2,050,910$ 650,134$ 

28 




 
Policy Target Long-Term Expected  

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return 

Large Cap U.S. Equity 29.54% 5.72% 

Small Cap U.S. Equity 7.20% 6.44% 

Developed International Equity 18.90% 6.69% 

Emerging Market Equity 5.36% 8.67% 

U.S. Core Fixed Income 13.50% 0.83% 

Developed International Fixed Income 0.45% 0.31% 

 High Yield Fixed Income 0.60% 3.00% 

Emerging Market Fixed Income 0.45% 3.92% 

Real Estate 10.00% 4.61% 

Farmland 5.00% 5.81% 

Bank Loans 3.00% 2.18% 

Unconstrained Bonds 3.00% 2.71% 

Infrastructure 3.00% 6.25% 

 
Total 100% 

 

 

 

 




Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 


and Open Space District 



Notes to Basic Financial Statements 


For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 



 
NOTE 8 – Employee Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return by Asset Class 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) are developed for 
each major asset class. These returns are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding 
expected inflation and subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin.  The target allocation 
and projected arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class, after deducting inflation, but before 
deducting investment expense, used in the derivation of the long-term expected investment rate of return 
assumptions are summarized in the following table. 

Deferred Compensation Plans 
 
The Deferred Compensation Benefit Plans are administered through a third-party administrator. Since the 
District does not perform the investing function and has no fiduciary accountability for these plans, plan 
assets and any related liability to plan participants are excluded from the District's financial statements. 

The Deferred Compensation Benefit Plan is an employer discretionary, defined contribution plan 
established and governed under Internal Revenue Code Sections 401(a) and 457(b). The plan is available 
to employee groups based on bargaining unit and job class. 

Employer-only annual contributions are calculated based upon a percentage of employee compensation. 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 the District's contribution was $27,169. 

The District offers employees an optional deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Section 
457 of the Internal Revenue Code. This plan is available to substantially all employees and allows 
participants to defer a portion of their current income until future years, up to a maximum of $18,000 per 
calendar year. 

29 




 

 

 

 

 

 
 Date Board 

Project Amount Accepted Expiration Date 

Andy's Unity Park $ 1,084,239 10/14/2016 
 10/25/2021
 
Crane Creek Regional Trail          771,270 7/11/2001 
 12/6/2018
 
Denman Reach           50,000 10/14/2014 
 10/14/2021
 
Graton Community Park          103,124 10/25/2016 
 10/25/2019
 
Guerneville River Park Phase 2          368,000 9/18/2012 
 9/18/2019
 
Maxwell Farms          250,000 10/25/2016 
 10/25/2021
 
River Lane           35,000 10/25/2016 
 10/25/2019
 
Riverfront Regional Park Recreation Improvement          252,000 9/9/2008 
 12/6/2018
 
Roseland Creek Community Park - Phase 1c          920,000 10/25/2016 
 10/25/2019
 
Roseland Village Public Space          500,000 10/14/2014 
 10/14/2019
 
Southeast Santa Rosa Greenway       1,000,000 10/25/2016 
 10/25/2019
 
SMART Pathway – Hearn to Bellevue          282,760 9/18/2012 
 9/18/2019
 
SMART Pathway - Payran to S. Point          400,000 10/14/2014 
 10/14/2019
 
Steamer Landing Park Development (McNear Peninsula) 

                                   Total 
         100,000 10/25/2016 
10/25/2021


 
$ 6,116,393 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 9 – Environmental Remediation 

The District has performed an analysis of the buildings on the McCullough Ranch property and a 
conservation easement acquired in fiscal year 2009 and found asbestos and lead and a small amount of oil 
contaminated soil.  The District has estimated cost of $30,000 for the asbestos, lead and soil clean-up and 
has recorded a liability.  The District has included a total of $30,000 in estimated polluted remediation 
costs as part of its accounts payable balance at June 30, 2017. The District has taken it upon itself to 
perform the clean-up as there is no regulatory body involved.   

NOTE 10 – Commitments and Contingencies 

Matching Grants Accepted into the Program – Awaiting Contract Approval 

The list below represents projects that have been accepted in to the Matching Grant Program by 
the District’s Board and funding is contingent upon the successful negotiation of grant related 
documents such as a Matching Grant Agreement and Conservation Easement. 

30 




 

 

  

 

 

 

 
Unencumbered 

Receiving Agency Property Name 
Contracts 

Hood Mountain Regional Park and Open Space 
Sonoma County Regional Parks $323,600 

 Preserve-Lawson 
North Sonoma Mountain Regional Park and  

Sonoma County Regional Parks 263,127 
Open Space 
Stewards Point Ranch (California Costal Trail 

Sonoma County Regional Parks Stewarts Point and Kashia Coastal Reserve 862,143 
Segments) 

Total unencumbered contracts $1,448,870 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 10 – Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

In 2011, the Matching Grant Program Guidelines set forth new time requirements for project 
implementation, intended to ensure the timeliness of project completion. Specifically, the District 
has established time limitations for expending the District’s grant, expending the matching 
contribution, and implementing the project. Under the new guidelines, grant funds must be 
expended within three years for real property acquisitions, and within five years for restoration 
and park development projects. All matches must be met and all projects completed within five 
years. The timelines start on the date the Board accepts the project into the Program. The new 
time requirements for expending the District grant funding also applied to projects accepted in 
the 2008 Program cycle and before, with the timelines starting on the date the revised guidelines 
are adopted (December 6, 2011). 

The District may consider one request for extension of the time requirements up to two years, 
only upon the applicant’s demonstration of reasonable progress on the project and proof that the 
extension will result in successful completion of the project. 

Initial Public Access Operations and Maintenance (IPAOM) Unencumbered Contracts 

Ten percent of the sales tax received from Measure F is obligated for Initial Public Access 
Operations and Maintenance (IPAOM) on public recreational property. The $5,053,378 shown as 
Committed on the Government Fund Balance Sheet is for (IPAOM) and includes encumbered 
contracts of $504,413 for estimated expenditures through FY16-17. An additional $1,448,780 of 
the committed fund balance will be encumbered in future years under existing multi-year 
contracts related to transfer of properties to other governmental agencies. These future contract 
encumbrances are anticipated as follows: 

31 




 

 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Required Supplementary Information 



 

 

 
 
 

Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 

12/31/2016 

0.522% 

General Plan 
12/31/2015 

0.570% 

12/31/2014 

0.566% 

12/31/2013 

0.521% 
Proportion share of the Net Pension Liability $ 2,050,910 $ 2,352,712 $ 1,227,521                $ 1,269,050 
Covered Employee Payroll 
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) as a 

                 1,929,815                  1,976,192                  1,840,756                  1,678,706 

Percentage of its Covered-Employee Payroll 
District's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position as a 

106.27% 119.05% 66.69% 75.60% 

Percentage of the District's Total Pension Liability 85.92% 84.63% 90.88% 89.76% 
 District's Proportionate Share of Aggregate Employer 

Contributions 0.52% 0.57% 0.55% 0.55% 

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore 
 only four years are shown. 

 
 






















Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Pension Plan 

Last 10 Years* 


Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the 

Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios as of  


The Measurement Date 


34 




 

 

 
 

General Plan 
Fiscal Year 2016 - 2017 Fiscal Year 2015 - 2016 Fiscal Year 2014 - 2015 

Actuarially determined contribution $ 332,501 $ 391,335                             $ 338,060 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined  
contributions 
Contribution deficiency (excess) 

                            (332,501)                             (391,335)                             
                                   $ -                                    $ -                                    $ 

(338,060) 
-

Covered-employee payroll $ 1,929,815 $ 1,976,192                          $ 
 1,840,756 

 Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee 
 
payroll 17.23% 19.80% 
 18.37% 

Notes to Schedule 
Valuation date: 12/31/2014 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization method Level percentage of payroll, closed 
Remaining amortization period 13 years 
Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market 
Inflation 3.25% 
Salary increases (1) 
Investment rate of return 7.50% (2) 
Mortality RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Table  

projected 20 year with the two-dimentional scale MP20142D 














 




Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer Defined Pension Plan 

Last 10 Years* 


Schedule of Contributions 


(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment 

(2)  Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation 

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore 
only three years are shown. 

35 




                                                
                        
                                                

                            

         

              
                                                
                                

                                   
                    

                        

 

Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and 
Open Space District 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance ­
Budget and Actual - Governmental Fund 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Variance with 
Final Budget ­

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive 
Original Final Amounts (Negative) 

Revenues 
Contributions from Open Space Special Tax Account $36,502,956 $36,502,956 $15,824,565 ($20,678,391) 
Grants - State - - 328,426 328,426 
Grants - Federal 250,000 250,000 142,967 (107,033) 
Donations - - 5,574,858 5,574,858 
Interest on pooled cash 60,000 60,000 27,522 (32,478) 
Miscellaneous 15,000 15,000 36,161 21,161 

Total revenues 36,827,956 36,827,956 21,934,499 (14,893,457) 
Expenditures 

Current: 
Salaries and employee benefits 4,110,740 4,110,740 3,361,910 748,830 
Services and supplies 4,763,991 7,462,296 5,909,302 1,552,994 
Contribution to other government 3,000,000 3,464,193 3,477,695 (13,502) 

Capital outlay: 
Land and easements 24,035,000 23,587,000 12,185,869 11,401,131 
Buildings and improvement 680,000 980,483 267,256 713,227 
Machinery and equipment 45,000 32,214 12,786 
Preacquisition costs - - 366,365 (366,365) 

Encumbrances - (3,321,360) (3,509,502) 188,142 
Total expenditures 36,589,731 36,328,352 22,091,109 14,237,243 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 238,225 499,604 (156,610) (656,214) 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Transfers in 5,700 5,700 4,854 846 
Transfers out (17,226) (17,226) (17,226) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (11,526) (11,526) (12,372) 846 

Net change in fund balances 226,699 488,078 (168,982) (655,368) 

Fund balance - beginning of year 7,026,132 7,026,132 7,026,132 -

Fund balance - end of year $7,252,831 $7,514,210 $6,857,150 ($655,368) 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. 

36



 

 
 

 

 

 

 














Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation 

and Open Space District 


Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 


NOTE 1 – Supplementary Notes 

A. Budgetary Information 

Budgetary revenue estimates represent original estimates modified for any authorized adjustment 
which was contingent upon new or additional revenue sources.  Budgetary expenditure amounts 
represent original appropriations adjusted by budget transfers and authorized appropriation 
adjustments made during the year. All budgets are adopted on a non-GAAP basis.  The District’s 
final budgetary information was amended during the year by resolution of the Board of Directors. 

B. Encumbrances 

The District has unexpended encumbrances of $3,509,502 at June 30, 2017. These encumbrances 
represent commitments by the District for services related to the acquisition of land and easements 
and the stewardship of District owned properties. 

37 




 

 

This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Other Supplementary Information 



 

 

This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



Sonoma County Ag Preservation and Open Space District 

Schedule of Interests in Land 

June 30, 2017 

Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

Meacham Hill 

5/14/1992 Marty 
Penngrove, CA 

Olsen Lane (-06), 

Conservation 

Easement
 503,639.00 

Orchard Lane (-08) 

Total Fiscal Year 1991-92  503,639.00 

5070 Lakeville Hwy. 
Conservation 

3/8/1993 Cloudy Bend Petaluma, CA 
Easement

 102,607.50 

Note: Coastal Conservancy granted $350,000 

5/25/1993 Sebastopol Railroad Forest 
Portion of Railroad Right-of-Way 

Sebastopol, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 21,313.75 

Total Fiscal Year 1992-93  123,921.25 

7125 St. Helena Road Conservation 
7/27/1993 Doerksen 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 109,936.25 

4260 Alba Lane Conservation 
8/31/1993 Alba Lane 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 300,707.90 

4205 Coffey Lane & 
Conservation 

9/14/1993 White 188 E. Fulton Road 
Easement

 454,494.25 

Santa Rosa CA 

9/14/1993 St. Francis Vineyards 
Hwy 12 at Adobe Canyon Road 

Kenwood, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 886,327.11 

6018 Bloomfield Road Conservation 
9/14/1993 Vasila 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 128,158.49 

374 Horn Avenue Conservation 
9/21/1993 Brown 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 197,865.52 

10/19/1993 Burns 
2505 & 2245 Spring Hill Road 

West Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 431,371.80 

4/12/1994 St. Luke's 
4111 Old Redwood Hwy. 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 342,602.58 

1300 W. Sierra Avenue 

10 Summit Grade Road 
Conservation 

6/14/1994 Cotati Highlands 333 & 335 Pine Grove Road 
Easement

 2,089,204.35 

Stony Point Road 

Cotati, CA 

5510 Bloomfield Road Conservation 
6/14/1994 Dougan 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 355,432.90 

Total Fiscal Year 1993-94  5,296,101.15 

22477 Koftinow Drive Conservation 
8/22/1994 Lorenzini Property 

Timber Cove, CA Easement
 520,058.72 

9/1/1994 De Loach Property 
10540 Los Amigos Road 

Healdsburg, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 540,448.31 

9/1/1994 Ziedrich Property 
10536 Los Amigos Road 

Healdsburg, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 144,332.50 

4547 Whistler Avenue 
9/2/1994 San Francisco Archdiocese 

Santa Rosa, CA 
Fee Title  150,883.48 

Fitch Mountain Conservation 
9/15/1994 Ratchford Property 

Healdsburg, CA Easement
 1,042,247.84 

12/16/1994 Pieter Myers 
19999 Coleman Valley 

Occidental, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 108,273.75 

12/30/1994 
Mayacama Valley Partners 

National Audobon Society 

Juncture of Alexander Valley & Knights Valley 

vicinity of Pine Flat Road 

Conservation 

Easement
 722,972.50 

2/2/1995 Fox Healdsburg Ridge 
Poppy Hill & El Arroyo 

Healdsburg, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 154,938.53 

2/2/1995 Diggers Bend 
Poppy Hill & El Arroyo 

Healdsburg, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 305,304.99 

4/28/1995 Stony Point Ranch 
6700 Gravenstein Hwy 

Cotati, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 485,867.56 

41



Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

200 Scenic Avenue 
5/23/1995 Haroutunian South 

Rohnert Park, CA 
Fee Title  185,811.01 

Occidental Road to Grey Street near Graton, 
Conservation 

5/31/1995 Graton Right of Way from Graton Road to Green Valley Road, and 
Easement

 174,356.00 

from point south of Ross Station to Key Lane 

2900 Llano Road Conservation 
6/15/1995 Carinalli 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 768,149.66 

3115 Porter Creek Road Conservation 
6/30/1995 Lang Property 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 1,259,634.28 

Total Fiscal Year 1994-95  6,563,279.13 

9/7/1995 Silberstein 
5531 Kay Drive 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 204,853.49 

9/15/1995 Dutton 
8610, 8611 Oak Grove Avenue 

Graton, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 325,361.33 

2400 Sobre Vista Road Conservation 
9/22/1995 Freiberg 

Sonoma, CA Easement
 959,704.37 

2400 Sobre Vista Road Conservation 
9/22/1995 Henshaw 

Sonoma, CA Easement
 314,798.00 

11/15/1995 Silacci Dairy 
4170 Lakeville Hwy 

Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 503,777.62 

12/12/1995 Nicholas Turkey Farms 
2676 Napa Road 

Sonoma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,412,600.78 

1/3/1996 
Santa Angelina Ranch/ 

Mcmicking 

12629 Hwy 128 

Knights Valley, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,743,230.11 

1/8/1996 McCormick Ranch 
Langtry Road 

St. Helena, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,712,147.95 

3820 Petaluma Hill Road Conservation 
1/19/1996 Matteri 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 401,535.50 

Moon Ranch - 3268 Old Adobe Road Conservation 
3/29/1996 

Pfendler Petaluma, CA Easement
 1,439,122.93 

4/3/1996 Unity Church Property 
4351 Old Redwood Hwy. 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 422,523.92 

North Cloverdale on Conservation 
4/10/1996 Anderson 

Russian River Easement
 228,004.76 

5/3/1996 Palm Terrace 
City limits of Sebastopol west edge of Laguna 

de Santa Rosa 

Conservation 

Easement
 913,432.35 

5/24/1996 Mickelsen 
Mecham and Pepper Roads 

Northwest of Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 677,379.69 

5/30/1996 Alman Marsh 
East of Hwy 101 between Marina and former 

city landfill 

Conservation 

Easement
 60,991.25 

6/7/1996 Herzog (Sleepy Hollow) 
Mecham and Pepper Roads 

Northwest of Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 997,397.59 

Total Fiscal Year 1995-96  12,316,861.64 

7/5/1996 Treadwell 
31820 McCray Road 

Cloverdale, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 105,027.50 

3150 Robler Road Conservation 
7/23/1996 Knudtsen 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 428,244.26 

13000 Los Amigos Road 

9/4/1996 Guttman (Lang) 
Healdsburg, CA 

(NW of Poerter Creek Road / 

Conservation 

Easement
 406,196.85 

Franz Valley Road) 

North of Highland Circle / 
Conservation 

9/26/1996 Callahan (Raja Dev.) East of Poppy Hill Drive 
Easement

 559,332.00 

Healdsburg, CA 

100 East D Street Conservation 
10/14/1996 McNear Peninsula (Lind) 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 192,111.50 

12/11/1996 
Weston 

(Sotoyome Highlands) 

13000 Los Amigos Road 

Healdsburg, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,667,916.25 

4/25/1997 Yee 
4871 Redwood Hwy. 

South Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 803,641.36 

42



Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

4315 Snyder Lane 

5/19/1997 Young / Armos 4314 Hunter Avenue Fee Title  376,574.50 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Los Alamos Road Conservation 
5/29/1997 McCormick Ranch 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 667,046.44 

Total Fiscal Year 1996-97  5,206,090.66 

7/23/1997 McCrea 
Vigilante Road 

Glen Ellen, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,208,560.80 

7/31/1997 Geary 
5525 Bennett Valley Road 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 2,322,335.50 

Estero Lane Conservation 
9/5/1997 Hepper 

Bodega, CA Easement
 294,357.05 

11/3/1997 Morrison Brothers 
5151 Stony Point Road 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 388,443.93 

12/11/1997 Keegan & Coppin 
Bennett Valley Road (Vacant Lot) 

Santa Rosa, CA 
Fee Title  558,401.40 

Gray Creek Road / 
Conservation 

1/15/1998 Magers (Gray Creek Portion) Off Mill Creek Road 
Easement

 90,215.51 

Healdsburg, CA 

1/21/1998 Cramer 
Hall / Occidental Roads 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,667,016.50 

10801, 10806, 10808, 10810, 
Conservation 

2/17/1998 Stein (Windsor Oaks) 10900 Hillview Rd / Arata Ln 
Easement

 1,634,576.65 

Windsor, CA 

2/20/1998 Aggio 
2888 Stony Point Road 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 494,323.02 

2/27/1998 Haroutunian North 
Airport Boulevard 

Santa Rosa, CA 
Fee Title  408,311.65 

Gray Creek Road / 
Conservation 

3/11/1998 Gustafsson (Gray Creek Portion) Off Mill Creek Road 
Easement

 143,730.13 

Healdsburg, CA 

5057 Petaluma Hill Road 
4/13/1998 Oken 

Rohnert Park, CA 
Fee Title  897,660.30 

Total Fiscal Year 1997-98  10,107,932.44 

Between Santa Rosa and 
Conservation 

8/4/1998 Dashiell / Molle Rohnert Park East side of 
Easement

 336,322.00 

Petaluma Hill Road 

8/14/1998 White II 
Coffey Lane 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 241,614.00 

9/30/1998 Hafey 
Knights Valley along Hwy 

128 South of Franz Valley Road 

Conservation 

Easement
 910,487.00 

12/21/1998 Bath / Watt 
Along prominent ridgeline SE of Santa Rosa, on 

Northern side of Taylor Mountain 

Conservation 

Easement
 824,241.00 

1/6/1999 
Sonoma Developmental Center -

Area 1 
Sonoma Valley, adjacent to Jack London Park 

Conservation 

Easement
 262,705.00 

2/4/1999 Monte Rio School 
9725 Main Street, south of Monte Rio 

Community Center 

Conservation 

Easement
 197,684.00 

4/16/1999 
Bodega Bay Firehouse 

Fire Protection District 
Highway One Scenic Corridor 

Conservation 

Easement
 53,785.00 

4/23/1999 Mazzetta 
NW of Petaluma at junction of Pepper Road 

and Mecham Roads 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,000,839.00 

4/23/1999 
Mom's Beach 

(Notter Property) 

Northwest of Forestville, River Road adjacent 

to Russian River 

Conservation 

Easement
 81,561.00 

5/18/1999 Skiles 
North of Glen Ellen, adjacent to Jack London 

State Park 

Conservation 

Easement
 646,987.00 

Conservation 
6/1/1999 Good (Nathanson Creek) Park/Sonoma Valley High School 

Easement
 101,687.00 

East and West sides of Canfield Road south of Conservation 
6/25/1999 Nahmens 

Sebastopol, CA Easement
 1,166,429.00 

Total Fiscal Year 1998-99  5,824,341.00 

Panorama Drive Conservation 
12/23/1999 Nunes 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 987,791.00 

43



Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

1/5/2000 Colliss 
Coleman Valley Road 

Occidental, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,049,574.00 

Town of Windsor Bell Road Conservation 
1/12/2000 

(Windsor Town Green) Windsor, CA Easement
 776,816.00 

Petaluma Hill Road 
1/19/2000 Matteri 

Santa Rosa, CA 
Fee Title  473,128.00 

1/21/2000 Mickelsen / Camozzi 
Pepper and Walker Roads 

Sonoma County, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,516,125.00 

Total Fiscal Year 1999-00  4,803,434.00 

9/13/2000 Van Alstyne 
Fitzpatrick Lane 

Occidental, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,272,910.00 

Lichau Road Conservation 
10/4/2000 Cook 

Penngrove, CA Easement
 1,711,894.00 

Pine Flat Road Conservation 
12/6/2000 Modini 

Healdsburg, CA Easement
 1,060,730.00 

12/7/2000 Sequeira / Red Hill 
Coast Hwy 1 

Jenner, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,428,759.00 

Railroad Avenue Conservation 
12/29/2000 Solak 

Forestville, CA Easement
 176,454.00 

Petaluma Hill Road 
5/4/2001 Ho 

Rohnert Park, CA 
Fee Title  569,860.00 

1660 Estero Lane Conservation 
5/11/2001 Dewar 

Bodega Bay, CA Easement
 291,574.00 

5/18/2001 Glen Oaks 
Hwy 12 

Glen Ellen, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,511,825.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2000-01  8,024,006.00 

12/12/2001 
City Farms Laguna De Santa Rosa 

(Donated) 
Geysers Pipeline 

Conservation 

Easement
 41,785.00 

12/17/2001 Cooley Ranch 
Cooley Ranch Road 

Cloverdale, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 5,887,575.00 

1/10/2002 Ielmorini Property 
13601 State Hwy 1 

Valley Ford, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,815,589.00 

1/18/2002 
Richardson (Cloverdale River 

Park) 

31650 McCray Road 

Cloverdale, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 65,765.00 

820 Fallon Road Conservation 
1/29/2002 Azevedo Dairy 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 1,762,344.00 

500 Morelli Vista Road Conservation 
3/20/2002 Morelli Property 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 2,187,178.00 

4/5/2002 Martin Property 
Valley Ford Road 

Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,610,287.00 

5700 Occidental Road Conservation 
4/18/2005 Balletto Ranch 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 2,632,820.00 

5/3/2002 Bianchi Property 
15000 Hwy 1 

Valley Ford, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,527,517.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2001-02  17,530,860.00 

7/31/2002 
Paulin Creek Property 

Sass (Chanate Trail) 

3100 Chanate Road 

Santa Rosa, CA 
Fee Title  1,615,337.00 

700 Hardin Lane Conservation 
8/16/2002 Scott Property 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 3,373,245.00 

8/16/2002 Mccullough Property 
Mark West Springs Road 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 2,923,109.00 

Town Of Windsor 630 Windsor River Road Conservation 
8/30/2002 

Keiser Park Windsor, CA Easement
 1,149,765.00 

9/17/2002 Rigler Property 
Coleman Valley Road 

Bodega, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 875,856.00 

7821 Eastside Road Conservation 
10/9/2002 Hanson Aggregates Parcel 

Healdsburg, CA Easement
 4,042,301.00 

10/31/2002 Girouard (Cloverdale River Park) 
31638 McCray Road 

Cloverdale, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 22,024.00 

16331 Norrbom Road Conservation 
12/24/2002 Keen Property 

Sonoma, CA Easement
 360,566.00 

44



Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

1000 Second Street Conservation 
12/27/2002 Prince Memorial Greenway 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 3,080,201.00 

6300 Petaluma Hill Road Conservation 
12/31/2002 Grossi Property 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 330,879.00 

11057 Sunset Avenue Conservation 
1/31/2003 Sunset Beach Property 

Forestville, CA Easement
 636,915.00 

3/11/2003 Asborno Property 
16488, 16492 Healdsburg Ave 

Healdsburg, CA 
Fee Title  4,285,288.00 

3/25/2003 Johnson Property 
7555 Sonoma Highway 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 3,077,498.00 

3/25/2003 Johnson Access Property 
7557 Sonoma Highway 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,028,487.00 

3800, 4000, 4300 & 4500 

5/16/2003 Carrington Property Hwy One, Coleman Valley Road Fee Title  4,882,273.00 

Bodega Bay, CA 

5/30/2003 Brayton Property 
1797, 1799 Pepper Road 

Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,316,268.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2002-03  33,000,012.00 

7/16/2003 Indian Valley Property 
5610 Maryannis Drive 

Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 478,043.00 

27285 Dutcher Creek Road Conservation 
7/31/2003 Connolly Property 

Cloverdale, CA Easement
 266,505.00 

5297 Sonoma Mountain Road Conservation 
8/13/2003 Jacobs Ranch 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 4,919,749.00 

11/10/2003 Fox Pond Property 
16496 Healdsburg Avenue 

Healdsburg, CA 
Fee Title  2,905,833.00 

6560 Sonoma Mountain Road Conservation 
1/29/2004 Skiles Property 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 224,894.00 

2/26/2004 Flocchini Property 
7078 Lakeville Highway 

Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 794,322.00 

2/27/2004 
Petaluma River Marsh 

Enhancement 

Lakeville Highway 

Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,105,920.00 

Lichau Road Conservation 
4/30/2004 Wilroth Property 

Sonoma County, CA Easement
 2,255,695.00 

7175 Roblar Road Conservation 
5/21/2004 Roblar Ranch Property 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 2,292,062.00 

5850 Grove Street Conservation 
5/28/2004 Eliot Property 

Sonoma, CA Easement
 17,090.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2003-04  15,260,113.00 

Van Hoosear 2290 Grove Street Conservation 
7/14/2004 

Wildflower Preserve Sonoma, CA Easement
 5,402,122.00 

10/13/2004 Maffia Property 
12001 Valley Ford Road 

Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,168,446.00 

10/21/2004 
Sebastopol Skate Park and 

Community Garden 

Laguna Park Way 

Sebastopol, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 132,176.00 

10/22/2004 Beltane Ranch Property 
11775 Sonoma Highway 

Glen Ellen, CA 
Fee Title  9,182,041.00 

7699 Reclamation Road Conservation 
11/2/2004 Dickson Property 

Petaluma, CA Easement
 4,282,207.00 

Lichau Road Conservation 
12/1/2004 Wilroth Property 

Sonoma County, CA Easement
 59,555.00 

5761 Sonoma Mountain Road Conservation 
1/31/2005 Cooper's Grove 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 4,926,873.00 

11453 River Road Conservation 
3/15/2005 Summer Home Park 

Forestville, CA Easement
 399,098.00 

19100 & 2330 Willow Creek Road 
Conservation 

5/6/2005 Willow Creek 24110 Freezeout Road 
Easement

 20,923,138.00 

Sonoma County, CA 

Total Fiscal Year 2004-05  46,475,656.00 

9/29/2005 Tolay Lake Ranch 
5869 Lakeville Highway 

Petaluma, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 21,794,852.00 

45



                          

   

Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

6280 Melita Road Conservation 
10/7/2005 Lawson Property 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 1,183,695.00 

Santa Rosa Creek Conservation 
10/7/2005 Prince Gateway Park (Boyett) 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 420,963.00 

12/20/2005 Camp Gualala 
27010 Skaggs Spring Road 

Annapolis, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 894,878.00 

18950 Fifth Street West Conservation 
12/15/2005 Montini Property 

Sonoma, CA Easement
 12,687,523.00 

18951 Fifth Street West Conservation 
12/15/2005 Montini Property 

Sonoma, CA Easement 
1,350,000.00 

2100 Kawana Terrace Road Conservation 
1/13/2006 Taylor Mountain Ranch (Russell) 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 18,174,418.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2005-06  56,506,329.00 

5900 Petaluma Hill Road Conservation 
9/8/2006 Crane Property 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 1,112,378.48 

8/24/2006 Saddle Mountain Property 
Calistoga & Helena Roads 

Sonoma County, CA 
Fee Title  14,714,525.00 

Conservation 
7/3/2006 Santa Rosa Creek (3 Bridges) Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 7,950.00 

6/22/2007 
Sonoma Developmental Center -

Area 3 

14400 Sonoma Highway 

Sonoma County, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 586,881.00 

5767 & 5775 Bloomfield Road Conservation 
4/18/2007 Tremari 

Unincorporated Petaluma, CA Easement
 3,185,447.13 

Total Fiscal Year 2006-07  19,607,181.61 

6/5/2008 Quailbrook Ranch 
6450 Quailbrook Lane 

Penngrove, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 1,647,162.93 

5240 St. Helena Road Conservation 
12/31/2007 Hayfork Ranch 

Santa Rosa, CA Easement
 668,197.58 

3035 Porter Creek Road 
11/15/2007 Cresta Property 

Santa Rosa, CA 
Fee Title  3,142,034.65 

9/28/2007 Poff Property 
8000 State Highway 1 

Bodega Bay, CA 
Fee Title  5,650,183.47 

9/28/2007 Clover Springs Property 
Skyview Drive 

Cloverdale, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 7,840,666.65 

9/28/2007 Pitkin Marsh Property 
4869 North Gravenstein Highway 

Sebastopol, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 404,855.50 

12/21/2007 Roche Property 
West Line of Highway 121 

Sonoma County, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 2,013,611.24 

Total Fiscal Year 2007-08  21,366,712.02 

Conservation 
10/14/2008 Greenway Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 879,216.91 

10/16/2008 
Laguna de Santa Rosa Acquisition 

& Enhancement 
Sebastopol, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 688,047.45 

Conservation 
10/16/2008 Falletti Ranch Cotati, CA 

Easement
 3,161,087.85 

11/14/2008 Occidental Road Sonoma County, CA Fee Title  106,442.44 

Conservation 
12/30/2008 Sonoma Mountain Ranch (Walsh) Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 10,033,549.19 

1/15/2009 
Russian Riverkeeper Stewardship 

Park 
Guerneville, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 50,000.00 

Conservation 
3/24/2009 North Slope Mtn Trail Healdsburg, CA 

Easement
 2,890.00 

Conservation 
4/17/2009 Pacheco Dairy Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 1,530,844.32 

Conservation 
5/28/2009 Cooke Ranch Sonoma, CA 

Easement
 1,056,593.87 

Conservation 
6/30/2009 Gilardi Ranch Bodega, CA 

Easement
 1,654,816.16 

46



Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

Conservation 
6/30/2009 Petaluma Marsh Improvements Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 816,554.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2008-09  19,980,042.19 

9/14/2009 McCullough Phase I Santa Rosa, CA Fee Title  8,555,047.60 

Conservation 
9/16/2009 Patterson Point Villa Grande, CA 

Easement
 122,381.00 

Conservation 
9/24/2009 Quinlan / Noonan Bodega Bay, CA 

Easement
 1,893,040.86 

Conservation 
9/24/2009 Sittenauer Sebastopol, CA 

Easement
 446,235.89 

Conservation 
12/6/2009 Jenner Jenner, CA 

Easement
 39,470,789.00 

Conservation 
12/7/2009 Riddel Healdsburg, CA 

Easement
 819,917.00 

Conservation 
12/18/2009 Smith Family Ranch Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 2,357,377.00 

Conservation 
2/26/2010 Burbank Ave Property Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 2,441,637.00 

Conservation 
3/30/2010 Danielli Ranch Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 1,689,615.61 

Taylor Mountain: Farmers Lane 
Conservation 

5/7/2010 Extension - Sale to City of Santa Santa Rosa, CA 
Easement

 (211,000.00) 

Rosa 

Conservation 
6/29/2010 Crane Home Ranch Rohnert Park, CA 

Easement
 416,630.94 

Conservation 
6/30/2010 Bayer Property Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 1,336,940.34 

Conservation 
6/30/2010 Giorgi Park Rehabilitation Healdsburg, CA 

Easement
 522,062.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2009-10  59,860,674.24 

Conservation 
7/1/2010 Giorgi Park - Phase 2 Healdsburg, CA 

Easement
 728,745.30 

3/1/2011 
Burbank Ave Educational / 

Recreation 
Santa Rosa, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 3,507,321.39 

Conservation 
9/23/2010 Uncle Henry's Ranch Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 1,036,453.24 

Conservation 
6/7/2011 Van Steyn Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 116,408.22 

Conservation 
6/30/2011 Smith Family Ranch Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 300.00 

Total Fiscal Year 2010-11  5,389,228.15 

Conservation 
7/26/2011 Klesko Cloverdale, CA 

Easement
 1,858,614.96 

Conservation 
10/14/2011 Meadowlark Field Sebastopol, CA 

Easement
 4,859.48 

Conservation 
11/18/2011 Sonoma Garden Park Sonoma, CA 

Easement
 112,105.93 

Conservation 
12/21/2011 Pryor Ranch Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 2,718,776.37 

Conservation 
5/14/2012 Paula Lane Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 1,081,807.19 

Conservation 
5/25/2012 Bordessa Ranch Valley Ford, CA 

Easement
 1,861,639.92 

Total Fiscal Year 2011-12  7,637,803.85 

Conservation 
5/29/2013 Buckeye Forest Annapolis, CA 

Easement
 5,548,997.72 

Total Fiscal Year 2012-13  5,548,997.72 

Conservation 
10/28/2013 Forever Forestville Forestville, CA 

Easement
 486,165.17 

Conservation 
2/20/2014 Yee South Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 (6,333.99) 

47



                     

Donated Open Space Easements in Prior Fiscal Years (2)  8,845.66 

Donated Open Space Easements in Fiscal Year 2016-17 (2)  24,397.22 

Total Interests in Land and Easements as of June 30, 2017 $ 390,703,475.72 

(1) � Asset value will not always equal the District's contribution. Refer to Note 1-E. to the Basic Financial Statements for detail on asset 

valuation. 

(2) � Open Space Easements are properties where the District holds title obtained by donation through the development process. The 

interests are included in summary as they were determined to not relate to the District's Acquisition Plan implemented in 2006. 

Individual interests are valued based on the District internal costs of placing the asset in service. 

Date of Original 

Acquisition 
Property Name Property Address or Location 

Current 

Interest

 Asset 

Value (1) 

4/16/2014 Cresta II Santa Rosa, CA Fee Title  434,964.13 

5/13/2014 Eliot Trail Sonoma, CA Easement  91,816.17 

Conservation 
6/26/2014 Pole Mountain Jenner, CA 

Easement
 1,537,299.42 

Total Fiscal Year 2013-14  2,543,910.90 

7/2/2014 Noth Slope Rem ROW Esmt Sonoma, CA Easement  9,000.00 

8/12/2014 Haroutunian North 
Airport Boulevard 

Santa Rosa, CA 
Fee Title  (34,926.00) 

Conservation 
10/21/2014 Curreri Jenner, CA 

Easement
 590,319.31 

Conservation 
11/12/2014 Fitch Mountain II Healdsburg, CA 

Easement
 1,851,895.27 

Total Fiscal Year 2014-15  2,416,288.58 

Conservation 
8/31/2015 Jones Dairy Penngrove. CA 

Easement
 660,767.93 

Conservation 
11/18/2015 Kashia Coastal Reserve Sonoma Coast, CA 

Easement
 2,847,896.49 

Conservation 
12/24/2015 Estero Ranch Bodega Bay, CA 

Easement
 1,993,008.14 

Conservation 
4/8/2015 Colgan Creek Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 467,940.00 

Conservation 
4/15/2016 Rancho Mark West Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 301,465.43 

5/9/2016 
Sebastopol Skategarden 

Extension 
Sebastopol, CA 

Conservation 

Easement
 19,678.17 

Total Fiscal Year 2015-16  6,290,756.16 

Conservation 
4/8/2015 Colgan Creek CE Adjustment Santa Rosa, CA 

Easement
 46,086.28 

Conservation 
11/8/2016 Petaluma Community Fields Petaluma, CA 

Easement
 21,248.28 

Conservation 
1/13/2017 Stewart's Point Sonoma, CA 

Easement
 6,181,221.38 

Conservation 
4/14/2017 Howlett Forest Annapolis, CA 

Easement
 6,237,505.21 

Total Fiscal Year 2016-17  12,486,061.15 

48

http:390,703,475.72
http:24,397.22
http:8,845.66


 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 







STATISTICAL SECTION 


This part of the District’s Basic Financial Statements presents detailed information as a context for understanding what 
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the 
District and County’s overall financial health. In contrast to the financial section, the statistical section information is not 
subject to independent audit. 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the District and County’s financial 
performance and wellbeing have changed over time: 

1. Sales Tax Collected in Sonoma County, 1990 Measure C and 2006 Measure F 
2. Debt Service Required from the Open Space Special Tax Account, Measure F Bonds 
3. Cash Balance in Open Space Special Tax Account 

49 




 

 
 

 
 

 
     

            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
             

 
 






     




Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 


Sales Tax Revenue in Sonoma County 
1990 Measure C and 2006 Measure F 

Fiscal Year Sales Tax Revenue 
2008 19,249,112$ 
2009 17,359,171 
2010 15,348,517 
2011 15,278,741 
2012 18,260,198 
2013 19,443,954 
2014 20,557,321 
2015 21,452,209 
2016 22,203,169 
2017 23,189,660 

50 




 

 
 

 
     

               

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 
 
 

 
     

                

                  

                  

                  

                    











     
   
  
  
  
  

  






     
   
  
  
  
  




Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017 


Debt Service Required for the Open Space Special Tax Account 

Measure F Bonds 


Fiscal Year Total Debt Service 
2018 7,503,000 $ 
2019 7,505,500 
2020 7,506,125 
2021 7,501,750 
2022 7,501,625 

2023‐2024 14,054,500 

Cash Balance in Open Space Special Tax Account 

Last Five Years 


Fiscal Year OSSTA Cash Balance 
2013 66,319,957 $ 
2014 69,027,266 
2015 71,595,724 
2016 52,958,777 
2017 53,265,994 

51 




 

 

This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

53 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

      

 

 

 

 

 












 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON 

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 


AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  


WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
 

To the Board of Directors 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 
Santa Rosa, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Sonoma 
County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 4, 2017.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

53



 

 

 




Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated October 4, 2017 which is an 
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 4, 2017 

54 




 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



















SONOMA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 

AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 


MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

AND 


REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2017 


sjackson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2b



 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 

 
 
                   
 

 

  

 
    
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
  

 
  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 

























 























Table of Contents 


Page  

Memorandum on Internal Control .................................................................................................................. 1 


Schedule of Other Matters ....................................................................................................................... 3 


Required Communications ............................................................................................................................... 7 


Significant Audit Findings .......................................................................................................................... 7 


 Accounting Policies ................................................................................................................................ 7 


Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas ..................................................................... 7 


Accounting Estimates............................................................................................................................. 8 


Disclosures .............................................................................................................................................. 8 


Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit ................................................................................ 8 


Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements............................................................................................ 8 


Disagreements with Management.......................................................................................................... 8 


 Management Representations ................................................................................................................. 8 


Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants ....................................................... 9 


Other Audit Findings or Issues ............................................................................................................... 9 


Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements .................................................................. 9 















SONOMA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 


AND 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 


For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 




 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


 MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL
 

Board of Directors 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District  
Santa Rosa, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the Sonoma County Agricultural 
Preservation and Open Space District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  In addition, because 
of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of controls, 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls.  Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Included in the Schedule of Other Matters are recommendations not meeting the above definitions that we 
believe are opportunities for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency.   

Management’s written responses included in this report have not been subjected to the audit procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.   

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, others 
within the organization, and agencies and pass-through entities requiring compliance with Government Auditing 
Standards, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 4, 2017 

1



 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 
   

 

  
 










MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 


SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 


2017-01 Review of County-Prepared Journal Entries 

Journal entries are an important transaction cycle that affects all aspects of accounting and financial reporting. 
Prudent internal control concepts dictate that no single employee should process a transaction without the 
involvement of another employee. For journal entries, this typically takes the form of a second employee 
performing a review and approving the proposed entry prior to posting. Journal entries prepared, reviewed, and 
posted to the general ledger by Sonoma County personnel should be reviewed by the District for reasonableness. 
The review and approval should be documented by a reviewer signing and dating that their review has been 
completed and the entry is approved. 

During our testing of internal controls of the District, it was noted that, although the general ledger is reviewed 
at year-end, and the County occasionally alerts the District of impending general ledger transfers, the District 
does not consistently review journal entries posted by the County. 

Based on inquiries with District staff, it appears that unless notified by the County, the District relies on the 
County’s accountant to ensure journal entries are accurate and reasonable. We recommend the District review 
the general ledger and journal entries posted by the County on a monthly basis to ensure entries are reasonable. 

Management Response: 

As a result of this recommendation a change has been adopted in the Countywide Enterprise Finance System 
that precludes any entries from being posted to the District General Ledger without approval by the 
Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager. 

3 




 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 







	 

	 

	 




MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 


SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 


2017-02 Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards Board Pronouncements 

The following pronouncements are effective in fiscal year 2017/18: 

GASB 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefits Other Than Pensions 

The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local 
governments for post-employment benefits other than pensions (other post-employment benefits or OPEB). It 
also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for 
OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the 
effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for all post-employment benefits 
(pensions and OPEB) with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of 
accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency. 

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements 
by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting 
requirements for OPEB plans. 

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to the 
employees of state and local governmental employers. This Statement establishes standards for recognizing and 
measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. 
For defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to 
project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that 
present value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required supplementary information 
requirements about defined benefit OPEB also are addressed. 

In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with payables to 
defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the specified criteria and for 
employers whose employees are provided with defined contribution OPEB. This Statement also addresses 
certain circumstances in which a nonemployer entity provides financial support for OPEB of employees of 
another entity. 

In this Statement, distinctions are made regarding the particular requirements depending upon whether the 
OPEB plans through which the benefits are provided are administered through trusts that meet the following 
criteria: 

	 Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the OPEB plan and earnings on 
those contributions are irrevocable. 

	 OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the benefit 
terms. 

	 OPEB plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer contributing 
entities, the OPEB plan administrator, and the plan members. 

4 




 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 







	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 

	 




MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 


SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 


GASB 81 – Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements 

The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest 
agreements by providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a 
beneficiary of the agreement. 

Split-interest agreements are a type of giving agreement used by donors to provide resources to two or more 
beneficiaries, including governments. Split-interest agreements can be created through trusts—or other legally 
enforceable agreements with characteristics that are equivalent to split-interest agreements—in which a donor 
transfers resources to an intermediary to hold and administer for the benefit of a government and at least one 
other beneficiary. Examples of these types of agreements include charitable lead trusts, charitable remainder 
trusts, and life-interests in real estate. 

This Statement requires that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest 
agreement recognize assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement. 
Furthermore, this Statement requires that a government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests in 
irrevocable split-interest agreements that are administered by a third party, if the government controls the 
present service capacity of the beneficial interests. This Statement requires that a government recognize revenue 
when the resources become applicable to the reporting period. 

GASB 85 – Omnibus 2017 

The objective of this Statement is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to 
blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits 
(pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]). Specifically, this Statement addresses the following 
topics: 

	 Blending a component unit in circumstances in which the primary government is a business-type 
activity that reports in a single column for financial statement presentation 

	 Reporting amounts previously reported as goodwill and “negative” goodwill 

	 Classifying real estate held by insurance entities 

	 Measuring certain money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts at 
amortized cost 

	 Timing of the measurement of pension or OPEB liabilities and expenditures recognized in financial 
statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus 

	 Recognizing on-behalf payments for pensions or OPEB in employer financial statements 

	 Presenting payroll-related measures in required supplementary information for purposes of reporting by 
OPEB plans and employers that provide OPEB 

	 Classifying employer-paid member contributions for OPEB 

5 




 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 







	 

	 




MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 


SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS 


GASB 85 – Omnibus 2017 (Continued) 

	 Simplifying certain aspects of the alternative measurement method for OPEB 

	 Accounting and financial reporting for OPEB provided through certain multiple-employer defined 
benefit OPEB plans. 

EFFECTIVE FISCAL YEAR 2020/21: 

GASB 87 – Leases 

The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving 
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that 
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources 
based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a 
lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required 
to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  

6 




 

7 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 


REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 


Board of Directors 
Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District  
Santa Rosa, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space 
District (the District) for the year ended June 30, 2017. Professional standards require that we communicate to 
you the following information related to our audit under generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Audit Standards. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Accounting Policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting 
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year, except as 
follows: 

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements became effective, but did 
not have a material effect on the financial statements: 

GASB Statement No. 73 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets 
That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of 
GASB Statements 67 and 68 

GASB Statement No. 74 – Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pension Plans 

GASB Statement No. 77 – Tax Abatement Disclosures 

GASB Statement No. 78 – Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 
Pension Plans 

GASB Statement No. 80 – Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units – an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 14 

GASB Statement No. 82 – Pension Issues- an amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No.68, and 
No. 73 

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas 

We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the 
proper period. 

7



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 




Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. 
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements 
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 
The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the District’s financial statements were: 

Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on useful lives determined by management.  These lives have 
been determined by management based on the expected useful life of assets. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the depreciation estimate and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

Accrued compensated absences is estimated using accumulated unpaid leave hours and hourly pay rates in effect 
at the end of the fiscal year. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accrued 
compensated absences and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Net pension liability is determined by the Actuary of the Sonoma county Employees’ Retirement Association 
based on a December 31, 2016 measurement date.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the net pension liability and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

Disclosures 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, 
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  We did 
not propose any audit adjustments that, in our judgment, could have a significant effect, either individually or in 
the aggregate, on the District’s financial reporting process. 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely uncorrected misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.  
We have no such misstatements to report to the Board of Directors. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the 
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management representation 
letter dated October 4, 2017. 

8 




 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

    

 
 

 
 

  
 

 




Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an 
accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that 
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check 
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these discussions 
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our 
retention. 

Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies and 
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We did not audit the required supplementary information and do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the required supplementary information.  

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompany the financial statements, but are 
not required supplementary information.  With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate 
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary 
information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves. 

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory and Statistical Sections which accompany the financial 
statements, but are not required supplementary information.  Such information has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

****** 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board and management and is not intended to be, and 
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 4, 2017 

9 




 

 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
















INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON 

APPLYING AGREED UPON PROCEDURES FOR 


SONOMA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 

AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2017 


sjackson
Typewritten Text

sjackson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2c




 

 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
















	

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON 

APPLYING AGREED UPON PROCEDURES FOR 


SONOMA COUNTY AGRICULTURAL PRESERVATION 

AND OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 


FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2017 


Honorable Mayor and Members of the Commission 
Sonoma County Open Space Fiscal Oversight Commission 
Santa Rosa, California 

We have performed the procedures described below, which were agreed to by the Sonoma County Agricultural 
Preservation and Open Space District (District) and Sonoma County Open Space Fiscal Oversight Commission 
(Commission) solely to assist you with respect to verifying expenditures coded to the operations and 
maintenance category for the year ended June 30, 2017 were allowable, based on the Measure F Expenditure 
Plan and subsequent Board approved policies. Management is responsible for reviewing and approving the 
expenditures charged to the operations and maintenance expense account. The sufficiency of these procedures 
is solely the responsibility of the Commission.  Consequently, we make no representation regarding the 
sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested 
or for any other purpose. 

The procedures, and associated findings are as follows: 

Procedures 1: 	 We selected all expenditures from the “Fiscal Year 2017 Transaction Detail” provided 
by the Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager that were coded to the operations 
and maintenance (cost coding account 71) category for the months of April, May and 
June 2017 for the following eleven properties, selected by the Commission: 

1. Carrington Coast Ranch 
2. Clover Springs 
3. Wright Preservation Bank 
4. Healdsburg Ridge Open Space Preserve 
5. Jenner Headlands 
6. Laguna Trails 
7. Montini Open Space Preserve 
8. Paulin Creek Preserve 
9. Saddle Mountain 
10. Tolay Lake Ranch 
11. Ranchero Mark West 



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

	

	

	

	

	

We traced the operating and maintenance expenditures to supporting back up 
documentation and invoices. We reviewed the description of the expenses on the 
backup to ensure that the expense were allowable and in compliance with the Measure 
F Expenditure Plan, the 2007 Policy (Resolution 07-0666) and the 2013 (Resolution 
13-0410) Policy as it relates to initial public access.   

Results: 	 We tested a total of 83 lines of journal entries which totaled 29 expenditures that were 
charged to the operations and maintenance account for the months of April, May and 
June 2017. Tested expenditures appeared to be in compliance with the Measure F 
Expenditure Plan and the two Board policies based on the description of the 
expenditure. These expenditures appear to be consistent with the definition of the 
initial public access, operation and maintenance as described in the policies.  Payroll 
that is charged to operations and maintenance is reviewed by the Supervisor and then 
reviewed again at year end by the Stewardship Program Manager.  If the property is 
open to the public, they will not be allowed to charge time to operations and 
maintenance.  

Findings: 	 None Noted 

Procedures 2: 	 We requested Transfer Agreements for all of the above mentioned properties from the 
Administrative and Fiscal Services Manager. The 2007 and 2013 polices states that 
the expenditures should “support initial public access”.  Also the policies state that the 
normal expense reimbursement period should not exceed three years.  We reviewed 
the Agreements to determine if the timeline for the reimbursement period appears to 
be about three years.  We also reviewed the descriptions of the projects to see if they 
appear to be related to initial public access.  If the details of the project are not 
included in the agreement, we made sure that the agreement required District approval 
before the start of the project. 

Results: 	 We tested the available 9 finalized agreements focusing on the contract terms and the 
use of funds from the District.  The policies state the projects for use of the District 
funds shall not exceed three years, but can be extended upon District approval. The 
project descriptions in the agreements were compared against the definitions of the 
initial public access, operation and maintenance as described in the policies. The 
timing and terms of uses of District funds in the tested agreements appear to be in 
compliance with the 2007 and 2013 policies. 

Upon inquiry with District staff, it was noted the Carrington Coast Ranch and 
Healdsburg Ridge Open Space Preserve properties have not yet been transferred, and 
are thus still owned by the District. 

Findings: 	 None noted. 

******************** 



 

 

 

 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established 
by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an 
audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion on the expenditures charged to the 
operations and maintenance cost category. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and Members of the Commission and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties; however, this 
restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public record. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
October 12, 2017 



 

 

 
This Page Left Intentionally Blank 



Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

Consolidated Balance Sheet - District and OSST A Funds 


December 31, 2017 

Assets 
Cash and Investments $62,030,977 

Accounts Receivable 

Prepaid Expenditures 1,364 

Other Current Assets 50,000 

Intergovernmental Receivables 35,316 

Total Assets $62, 117,657 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Current Payables $178,876 

Customer Deposits 42,850 

Long-Term Liabilities 30,000 

Total Liabilities 251,726 

Fund Balance 
Nonspendable - Prepaid Expenditures 1,364 

Restricted - District Activities 64,216,234 

Total Fund Balance 64,217,598. 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $64,469,324 

**************************************** 

Cash by Fu.nd 

OSSTA - Measure F $55,811,991 

Open Space District 1,224,730 

Fiscal Oversight Commission 9,498 

Stewardship Reserve* 

Cooley Reserve 149,703 

Operations and Maintenance 4,835,055 

Total Cash by Fund $62,030,977 

*On July 1, 2015 the County of Sonoma Measure F Sales Tax Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2015 were issued. The transaction provided a savings of $13.6 

million, in part by following the Commission's recommendation of paying 

down $30 million in principal, as well as obtaining a lower interest rate. The 

Commission recommended using the $10 million in the Stewardship Reserve 

Fund as part of the $30 million paydown. Additionally the Commission 

recommended a funding strategy of using the seven year shortened bond 

term of $7.5 million in debt service to fund the Stewardship Reserve 

beginning in FV2024-25. FOC Minute Order #13 dated May 14, 2015 reflects 

this recommendation. 

1 

sjackson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 


Consolidated District and OSSTA Budget to Actual 


For the six months ended December 31, 2017 

50% of Vear Complete 

Budget Actual Encumbrances Remaining % of budget 

Final Year to Date Year to Date Balance Remaining 

Revenues 
Tax Revenue $23,043,630 $8,370,979 $14,672,651 63.67% 

Intergovernmental Revenues 6,304,363 51,938 6,252,425 99.18% 

Use of Money & Prop 390,000 437,893 (47,893) -12.28% 

Miscellaneous Revenues 750,000 46,916 703,084 

Other Financing Sources 685,980 685,980 100.00% 

71.43% Total Revenues 31,173,973 8,907,726 22,266,247 

Expenditures 
Salaries and Benefits 4,298,999 1,872,255 2,426,744 56.45% 

Services and Supplies 7,665,010 1,442,874 $2,588,153 3,633,983 47.41% 

Other Charges 4,353,724 103,374 2,565,869 1,684,481 38.69% 

Capital Expenditures 25,366,642 1,888,223 223,570 23,254,849 91.67% 

Other Financing Uses 8,186,190 3,097,917 5,088,273 62.16% 

72.36% Total Expenditures 49,870,565 8,404,643 5,377,592 36,088,330 

Net Earnings (Cost) ($18,696,592) 503,083 ($5,377,592) ($13,822,083) 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

63,714,515

$64 ,217 ,598 

Note: Sales tax collected as of December 31, 2016 was $8,140,528. Current collections are 2.8% over the 

prior year. 

2 

sjackson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 

Consolidated Balance Sheet - District and OSSTA Funds 


January 31, 2018 

Assets 
Cash and Investments $64,928,416 
Accounts Receivable 

Prepaid Expenditures 1,364 
Other Current Assets 50,000 
Intergovernmental Receivables 35,316 

Total Assets $65,015,096 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Current Payables $206,877 

Customer Deposits 42,850 

Long-Term Liabilities 30,000 

Total Liabilities 279,727 

Fund Balance 
Nonspendable - Prepaid Expenditures 1,364 
Restricted - District Activities 64,734,005 

Total Fund Balance 64,735,369 
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $65,015,096 

**************************************** 

Cash by Fund 

OSST A - Measure F $59,391,765 

Open Space District 570,296 

Fiscal Oversight Commission 9,498 

Stewardship Reserve* 

Cooley Reserve 150,179 

Operations and Maintenance 4,806,678 

Total Cash by Fund $64,928,416 

*On July 1, 2015 the County of Sonoma Measure F Sales Tax Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2015 were issued. The transaction provided a savings of $13.6 

million, in part by following the Commission's recommendation of paying 

down $30 million in principal, as well as obtaining a lower interest rate. The 

Commission recommended using the $10 million in the Stewardship Reserve 

Fund as part of the $30 million paydown. Additionally the Commission 

recommended a funding strategy of using the seven year shortened bond 

term of $7.5 million in debt service to fund the Stewardship Reserve 

beginning in FV2024-25. FOC Minute Order #13 dated May 14, 2015 reflects 

this recommendation. 

1 

sjackson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



Sonoma County Agricultural Preservation and Open Space District 


Consolidated District and OSSTA Budget to Actual 


For the seven months ended January 31, 2018 

58% of Year Complete 

Budget Actual Encumbrances Remaining % of budget 

Final Year to Date Year to Date Balance Remaining 

Revenues 
Tax Revenue $23,043,630 $10,062,080 $12,981,550 56.33% 

Intergovernmental Revenues 6,304,363 54,983 6,249,380 99.13% 

Use of Money & Prop 390,000 635,011 (245,011) -62.82% 

Miscellaneous Revenues 750,000 46,916 703,084 

Other Financing Sources 

Total Revenues 

685,980 685,980 100.00% 

65.36% 31,173,973 10,798,990 20,374,983 

Expenditures 
Salaries and Benefits 

Services and Supplies 

Other Charges 

Capital Expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 

4,298,999 

7,665,010 

4,353,724 

25,366,642 

8, 186,190 

2,171,293 

1,846,923 

112,543 

1,894,453 

3,752,924 

$2,945,840 

2,556,699 

199,373 

2,127,706 

2,872,247 

1,684,482 

23,272,816 

4,433,266 

49.49% 

37.47% 

38.69% 

91.75% 

54.16% 

Total Expenditures 49,870,565 9,778,136 5,701,912 34,390,517 68.96% 

Net Earnings (Cost) 

Beginning fund balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

($18,696,592) 1,020,854 

63,714,515 

$64, 735,369 

($5,701,912) ($14,015,534) 

Note: Sales tax collected as of January 31,2017 was $9,756,028. Current collections are 3.1% over the 

prior year. 

2 

sjackson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4


	Agenda
	Attachment 1 - Approval of Commission Minutes
	Attachment 2 - Financial Report
	Attachment 2a - Basic Financial Statements for FY Ended June 30, 2017
	Attachment 2b - Memorandum of Internal Control and Required Communications for FY Ended June 30, 2017
	Attachment 2c - Independent Accountants Report for FY Ended June 30, 2017
	Attachment 3 - SCAPOSD Consolidated Financial Statements December 2017
	Attachment 4 - SCAPOSD Consolidated Fiancial Statements January 2018


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




